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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Oplinian

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financlal statements of Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Bafance sheet as at March 31 20189, the Staterment of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Othar Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information {herein after referred to as 'ind AS financial statements).

In our opinicn and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act™Yin the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash
flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor's Responsibitities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financlal Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Indta
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financia! statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe that the audit evidence we have obfained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion an the Ind AS financlal statements.

Information Other than the Flnancial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
jnformation included in the Directors report, hut does not include the ind AS financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon. '

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does nat cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conciusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether such other information is materialfy inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude thaf there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company‘s Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated in section 134¢5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financiat position, financial
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, inciuding the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified

application of appropriate accounting poticies; making judgments and estirates that are reasonable and
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prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial contrals, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, refevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud ar ervor.

In preparing the nd AS financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as appficable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern

basis of accounting uniess management either intends to liquidate ihe Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the ind AS financial statements as a whole are iree
from materiai misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. we also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the Ind AS financial statemenis, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internai control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal centrol relevant to the audit in arder to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, Under section 143330 of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
refated disclosures made by management,

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a materal uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt an the Company's ability ko continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a matesial
uncertainly exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disciosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS tinancial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scape and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

ependence, and to communicate with them aft relationships and other matters that may reasanably be
ron our independence, and where applicable, related safequards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requlrements

1. As

required by the Companies (Auditor's Repart) Order, 2016 (“the Drder™), issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure 1" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As

(a)

(b}

(e}

{d)

(e)

)

(@)

{h)

For S.R.

required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

We have sought and obtained all the infermation and explanations which to the best of our knowle-dge and
helief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

{n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far asit appears
from our examination of thase hooks;

The Baiance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
income, the Cash Fiow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity deait with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors ason March 31, 2019 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors Is disqualified as on March 31, 2019 from being appointed
as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

Wwith respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial centrols over financiat reperting of the Company with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report In “Annexure 2" to this report;

The provisions of sectlon 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are nof appiicable to the Company for the year
anded March 31, 2019;

With respect to the other matters tp be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended In our epinion and to the test of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Campany has disciosed the impact of pending Sitigations on its financial posiion in its Ind AS
financial staternents - Refer Note 32 to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts Including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable fosses; and

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund hy the Company.

Batlibol & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

7

per Sukrut Mehta

Partner

Membership Number: 101794

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date; May 25, 2019

Page 3of 7




SR Batiisoi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Annexure 1 referred to in Paragraph 1 of Report on Gther Legal and Requlatory Requirements of our report of
even date of Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limlted for the year ended March 31, 2019.

() a) The company has maintained praper records showing full particulars, including quantitative detalls and
situation of property plant & equipment;

b The property plant & equipments have been physicaily verified by the management during the year which in
our opinion is reasonable considering the nature and size of its assets. No materlal discrepancies were noticed
on suich verification;

) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no immavabie propertles,
included in property, plant and equipment of the company and accordingly, the requirements under paragraph
3¢iXc) of the Order are not applicable to the Company;

(i) The Company is in the business of development, construction as well as operation & maintenance of road
infrastructure projects, which does not require 1t to hold any inventory. Accardingly, the requirements under
clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable to the Cainpany and hence nat commented upon;

(liiy According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnership or other parties tovered in the register maintained
under section 189 of the Act, Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3¢ii) (a), (b and (©) of the Crder are not
applicable.to the Company and hence not commented upon,

(iv> In our opinion and aceording to the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans given in respect
of which provisions of section 185 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon. Further, based on
the information and explanations given to us, being an infrastructure Company, provision of section 186 of the
Act is not applicable to the Company and hence not commented uporn.

(v The Cempany has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies
(Acceptance of daposits) rules, 2014 (as amended, Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(v) of the order are
not applicable and hence net commented upon.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the
Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, related to construction
of road and infrastructure projects refated services, and are of the opinion that prima facie, the specified
accounts and records have been made and matntained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of
the same,

{vil) a) According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of examination of the records of the
company provided to us, amounts deducted/accrued in the books of account in respect of undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, employees' stata insurance, incoma-tax, goods and services tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it are generally regularly deposited with appropriate authorities though there has
been a slight defay in a few cases. According to the information and explanation given to us there are no dues
payable on account of duty of custom during the year,

B} According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, employee's state Insurance, ircome-tax, goods and services tax, cess and other material
statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

) According to the information, explanations and records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income tax,
goods and service tax and other material statutery dues on account of any dispute, are as foflows:

Name of the Statue Nature of the dues Amount Period to which the Forum where the
(INR in amount relates dispute is pending
- Millior)
) T“f me Tax Act, Income Tax demand 13,73 Assessment Year income Tax Appellate
‘\C‘ 51 (Ach) u/s 143(3)i} of the 2013-14 Tribunal
Act.
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(vili} According to the informaticn and explanataons given by the management, the Company has delayed in repayment
of loans to banks during the year which were in arrears as on the balance sheet date. The details of such delay is
tabulated as under:

Particulars Amount of the default as the | Period of default Remarks
Balance sheet dafe since
{IKR in miltions)
Punjab  National 16,32 March 31, 2019 | Subseguenily repayment has been
Banik (due date) made in parts tifl April 5, 2019 and
as confirmed by the bank, the same
is due to certain technical reasans.

Apart from above, the company has not defauited in repayment of ioan or borrowing to bank or financial
institution. The Company did not have any outstanding dues to the debenture hoiders or government during the
year.

¢ix) According to the informatipn and explanations given by the management, the Company has not ralsed any money
by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year
and hence, reporting under clause 3(|x) is not apptlcable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

{(x) Based upon the audit procedures perrormed for the purpose of reporiing the true and fair view of the financial
statements and according to the information and explanations glven by the management, we report that no fraud
by the company or no material fraud on the company by the officers and employees of the Campany has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(i} Accoruing to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not paid or provided
any remuyneration o the manager or directors appointed under the Act and hence the provision of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act has been complied.

(i) In our apipion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the order are
net applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon,

(i) According ta the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related partses
are in compliance with section 177 anc 188 of the Act where applicable and the details have been disclosed in
the notes to the Ind AS financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xivy According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet,
the company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debientures during the year under review and hence reporting requirement under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable
to the company and not commented upon.

(xv)  According to the information and expianations given by the management, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him as referred to in section 192 of the Act.

(xvd)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be registered under
section 4514 of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and hence reporting requirement under clause-3(xvi) are not
applicable to the company and not commented upon.

For S.R. Batfiboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
{CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

IS,

~ per Sukrut Mehta
Partner
Membership Number; 101974

Place of Signature; Ahmedabad
Date: May 25, 2019
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Annexure 2 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date on the Ind AS Financial Statements of Rohtak Panipat
Toliway Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financlal Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act™

We have audited the iriternal financial controls over financial reporting of Rohtak Panipat Toltway Private Limited ("the
Company”) as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibiity for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company's management is respensibie for establishing and maintaining internal financial centrols based on the
internaf centrol over financlal reporting criterta estabiished by the Company considering the essentja? components of,
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. These respensibilities include the design, implementation and
malkntenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safequarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibitity

Our responsibility is fo express an opinien on the Company's internat financial controls over-financial reperting with
reference to these financial statements based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of internat Financial Controfls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™ and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Compantes Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountents of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in ali material
respecls,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internaf financiat controls
aver flnancial reporting with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
internal financial centrols over financlal reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Ind AS financlal statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained fs sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financia! Reporting With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial statementsis a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financiat statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these Ind AS financial statements includes those
pelicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the malntenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratety and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary Lo permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made onty in accordance
with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have
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inherent Limitations of Infernal Financial Centrols Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financlat
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financlal controls over financlal reporting with reference to these
financial statements, including the possibllity of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls aver financial reporting with reference to these ind AS financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements may becorne inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In aur apinion, the Comipany has, in all material respects, adequate internat financial controls aver financial reporting
with reference to these financial statements and such internal financiat controls over financial reporting with reference
to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on the internal controf over
financial reparting criteria established by the Company considering the essentiai components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India,

For 5.R.'‘Batliboi & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

gmild/’v"‘“dﬁ

/p(er Sukrut Mehta

Partner
Membership Number: 101974

Place of Signature: Ahmedabad
Date: May 25, 2019
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Rohiak Panipat TnliWav Private Limited
Ralance Sheet as on March 11, 2019

T As at s af
Particulars Note No. Miarch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{NR i pailfion) {INA o Millicn)
HSSETS
17 Nan-turrent dssets
{4 Property; plant anel equipmeants 5 1.76 24l
{b) investment profpeity 6 1.03 103
{c) Iniangiiic assets 7 16,555, 06 17,088.16
{4} Fnancial assats
{iy Olher financlal aszets 16 n.ot 137,24
() Dihser assels 11 - 4.73 4.1
Fotal Nos-curtont assals 16,862,509 | 17,2335
2 Current Assels
(ar} Flsancisd fssets
{H} Investments a - 31.96
i} Csti anet bank batances g 10.62 14,34
(13} Other finnactal assals 10 fR0,33 98246
{b} Other assoly 11 12.9% 10.68
Tatal Current assels . 1,008.86 1,039,44
Tatal Assets 17,871.45 18,272.59
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Loty share capilal 12 2185 21.86
Oklar couity 13 {5,681.65} {1,B2E.22)
Total eeuity i {5,655.79) 3,799.36)
LIABILITIES
3 Noncyrront Liabitios
{0 Financial Liabifities
{it Borrmwings 1 8,906.55 9,719,67
{i} Dihar financial Ibbikties i8 n,654.99 B947.77
(b} Provisiens b 21719 12.52
Total Non-cirrrent lokilities 18,778.73 19,380.36
2 Current Linbiities
{a} Fnancial liahilities
(1} Darrowingss 15 2,286.72 1,372 .62
{5} Trade poyabies 17
-Tosal outglanding duves of micen anrd small anterprises - -
-Total olnstanding dues of croditors piiser e nvicra and small entesprises 44,77 3219
(1) Other Bnancial Bebifities 18 1,734,03 1,268.26
{B) Other Habilitles 19 .05 18.37
{c} Provisions i6 750,93 Q.15
Total Current Bahilities 4,852.50 2,691.59
Tatal Equily and Uakiities 17,071.45 | 18,272,549
Summary af glynificant accounting poilcles 3

The accompanying notes arg an integral part of Lthese financial statcrments,
As per aurraporl nf sven date

For 5. R. Datliboi & Co. LLP
Charterod Accountants
Firm feglstration No s3071G03E/£300008

M’ Ul
.
per Sukrnt Mehia

Partner
ftambershio Na.: 101974

-

BRl

Daste: Moy 25, 2010
Place: Ahmedabad

Fur and on behall of the Board of Dlrectoss of

ftohta) -Pnr\{;&fni[wuv Private Limitod
- of

lirom Patol Come
Difectar

DIN No.: ORO4B31E
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. A Q
L¥ake: May 25, 2019 %1 AHMEDABAD 5
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Roh-tak Panipat Tolhway Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 32, 2019

As At As ot
Patticulars Note No. | March 81, 2019 March 31, 2018
N In Million INR in Miilion
INCOME
1 Revenue from cperations 20 1,073.491 1,832.83

1 Othere income u 59,84 135.47

HE Total income {141 1,133,25 1,568.30
CHPENSES

a. Sub-conlractor charges .53 522.25
1. Operating expenses 22 2h7.02 259,57
c. Employee henafits expenses 23 2B.11 26,29
d. Fnance cost 24 2,349.25 2,256,99
&, Depreciation and amortization 25 322.48 316:08
f. Other expenscs 26 20,57 35,42

IV Total Expenses 1,983.96 3,416.60

V  tass hefore tax {4V} {1,860.71} {1,448.30)

VI Tax Expenses 27

Current Lax -
Deferred tax -

Vil Tdtal tax énpenses - -

VHE Loss for the year {V-vil) {1,660.71}) {1,448.30)
Y1 Other Comprehiensive theom

item that are not 16 be reclassifind to profit or Joss In subsoquent periads;
Remeasurements ffosses)/galo an defined benefit plans {refer note 29) 0.28 0,10
Incoms tax effect -

X Other Comprehensive Income/{lass) for the year n.2g 0,10
_X__Total Comprehanslve Income for the year, net of tax {VIi-1X) {1,860.43) (1,448.20
Earning per sharo [Face value of share INR 10/-]

Dasic and Diluted {ln INR} 28 {rh1.02) {662.40)
Sumnary of significant accounting policias 3

As per our report of even date

For 5. R. Batifbol & Co. LLP
Chartared Accountants

pey Sukrit Mehta
Portner
Mermbership No.: 101974

Drate: May 25, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

»—d'zv fe v

Firm Registration No.:301003E/E300005
W\‘V\

The accompanying riotes are an Integral part of these financial staternents,

For and on behalf of the Board of Divectors of
Rohtak fanipat Toilway Private Limitar

kram Patel
irector
DIN No.: 00048314

Date: May 25, 2019
Place: Ahmedabad

-

pif Patel
Director

DIN No.: 0631262




Rehtak Panipat Tolhway Private Limited
Siajement of Changes in Eguity (ar the year ended March 31, 2010
A Erquity Shira Capltal

Equity shares nf INR 10 pach lssued, subseribed and fully paid {nore 12) NL;::::;M {INfi 1n Mitlion)
As at April 1, 2017 21,806,405 21.86
Add/(Less) Chionges during he yeay . . - -
As at 31 Mirch 2018 21,86,40% 2L86
Add/{Less): Chunges during the year - -
AL 3t Mach 2019 _ _ 1,86,445 2186
B Other Equity [INR In Million)
Equity Lompanent of lleserves gad Surplus
farticulars Compouad Finznclal | Securitles Prewdum | Retalaed Earning Totol
Instrument [sote 13} {note 13) {note 13}
Asat April 1, 2017 2,200.06 195.08 (8,777,058 {2,373.02)
Loss for the yoar - - {1,448.30) {1,448,38)
Glher Comprahensivie ncopie/loss] for the year - « ] 0.10 mta
As al March 31, 2018 2,209.06 195,80 [6,225.16) {3,821.22)
As at April 1, 2018 2,208.06 195,88 (,226.16} 13,821.23)
Lovss for i yapr - - {1,860,71) 11,860, 71)
OtherCamprehensive Incomefiosi) log the yepr - - .28 .28
As at March 31, 2019 2,200,00 195,88 18,006.59) {5,61,65)

Yive accompanyng noies ace an integral part of these financial statemants.
As per oo report of even date

for 5. R, batiiboi & Co, LI} Far aod o behalf of ¢he Board of Directogs of
Charterad Accountanis Ttahil Pn’\li_univTall v Private Liwiied

firm Negistratlon No.: 301G03E/E3D0D0S -

. W W’.&“%ﬁ”ﬂ f)ﬁ;;-)}” Q%\;l)\

pet Sitkrut Mobita (knn: pate Vil Patel
Partner ifector Director
Mambearship No.: 301974 DIN No,; 00048318 DIN Mp.: De63a262

Data: May 25, 2019 Date: May 25, 2019
Place: Ahmedsbad Piace: Alimedahad (




Nluhiak Punipat Tollwray Private Limiﬁﬁ]
Lash Flow Statement foi the year anided March 31, 2019

. Wisteh 31, 1019 March 31, 2018
Partiew]ary . i
B IR Million INA In Million
(A} Cash fiows Fram apcrating sctivliies
Net {toss) hefora lax 11,860,714 {i,4%40.30)
Adfitstents te reconeile profft before tos to het sosh Sfinws;
Dapreciation sl amartiss 322,40 RELETS
intetest and diber bonowing cost 2,340,25 2,2%0.94%
interes! lncome {5.57) {12840}
Gain an salo of unite in mistsd s {2.74) HasH
Periadic wajor mainlenance expense 168,70 [ 1£8.80
Opecating profit befocn working capital changes 87146 1,183,723
Winekings copital chongas:
Cecresse f {ncraase) in inoucial assety 134,37 {748.53)
(Inerease) i elirfend nesals 1 {n. 28}
{Becrease] £ ncasse by Baniial shlliios {1n.40} REIW]
merense i teadle payalided 12,55 352
crease in citrant lipbilities 268 310
lacrease e provisions 0.33 N.50
Cash geovrated from operaling activities 1,106.21 218,14
Birect takds paul (nel of meame i refund) 9.6} 1076}
et gash (lw generated from oparating nciivlifes 1,105.49 17,30
{8} Cush flows from hvestsent setivitias
Pancinse of fangihte 9eels - {118}
Purthise 6f unkls i misuat fiinds {12} [38.00]
Proceeds o sale of daits ih mulueal fands §52.08 1 .02
Invesinignt i fixed dogosits 1385.90) -
Risaltsalton of lixed deposis 316,30
latetest incomie o fed deposils 5.52 i
Het £ash Baw gonersted from /f (used) In ivasting activitlés a0 [1.a8]
(€} Cash Rows fipm finnneing activities
fepayment o non-clivrant boriowitips {2,8:4).80} [Higay)
Peoteds frow norv-ciintent hosrowings 197195 -
Proceedds fon: cirrent butrowings DI AL LG
Ierest and other hotrowing cost paid {1,199.80);. {1,217.07
Mot cash flow [zsou) in finanelng activities {4,199.63} {924.00)
Mot (decrense} In cash aned cash equividents {3.vg) .04}
Cirsli ane! cash papivalenls o boglnpiag of the vewr 14.34 2338
Lasls g vash equivalon b5 at e of the yoor . . 39,62, 1434

it e
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Neutes? v

{it  Components of cash and cash equivalents frefar nole 9) March 31,2018

AiNg? i Mitlion)

March 31, i4R

{INTL )4 MiHlon}

Cash on-hand 4,34 115
Bafancas with banks ps cusienl accounils . 628 1.1
Eash aod cash ayuivalants 062 14,34

() 1he cash Mo stasement has Brea prepared vader indisecl methnd a3 per indian Accounthg Standird -7 "Cash Flow Slatement™.

{iif} Changes in Bobitilies arishin from financhg aellvilics: {INA I Million)
paiticulnes Aprik 1, 2018 Cnsr:EI:uw ii‘;tﬁj‘?‘:: Othars* Mareli 31, 2049
Hon-coreen banovdngs (rchuding conent maturities) 9042 6k 1468.85) 2052 14852 6,282 53
Ciuzont horpenags 137262 014.10 - - 1,256,792
hiered acgryat) £93.59 11.190.8%) - 1,4573.69 b,072.80

Totel %I,Dﬂﬂ.is {}.145.64) 20,52 1,762,210 12,642.35
o [INR 16 Ml
. . N Het fhpnge in .
Faliculars Aprit 1, 2017 Ohers® March 31,2018
Casli flow {air walne
Holecortonl bocrowsgs (inclding sirent matirities) 10,035.03 {119.49) 18.31 B.78 0,042 64
Currenl Bogrowdngs DR1.00° 41162 - - 137202
inlerest acerued A91RY {1,2172.00 - 1A 653,949
ntat 11,407.90 {821.94) 1841 1,422,97 12,009.25 |

“Othis represent exchange differene on external commgrcinl iorrowing as vetl s interest accruad duzing the year.
{iv) Figwres inbrackels repfegind outliawes,
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Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2019

Company information:

Rohtak Panipat Tollway Privale Limited {"the Company™} is a private company domiciled in India and is
incorparated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in tndia. It is 2 whole owned subsidiary
of Sadbhav Infrastructure Project Limited which is fisted on two recognized stock exchanges in india. The
tegistered office of the company is located at “Sadbhay House”, Opp. Law Garden Palice Chowkl, Eliishridge,
Ahmedabad - 380 006,

The Company was incorporated as a Spectal Purpose Vehicle (SPv) in January, 2010, for the purpose of four
lanihg of Ralitalk Panipat section of MH-10 from KM 63.30 to M 84.50 of N1 in the state af Haryana an
Design, Guild, Finance, Operate and Transfer ("DBFOT"} hasis, The Company has entered intp Concession
Agreement with National Highways Autharity of fndia {NHAI) with a Concession Period of 25 years w.e.f,
03th March, 2010, The Company had received provistonal completion certificate dated 6 January'2014 from
NHAL The tall collection had.commenced from that date-

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of Lthe directors on May
25, 2019,

Basis of preparation:

The financlal statements of the Company have heen prepared in accordance with indiagn Accounting
Standards {“Ind AS"} notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (a5 amended
from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division 1l of Schedule Il to the Companies Act 2013,
{Ind AS compliant Scheduie ill}, as applicable to financial statements,

These financlal statements have heen prepared on a historical cost convention and on an.accrial basts,
except for the followings assets and labilitios which have been measured at faly vaiue:
o Certain financial assets and labilittes measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding
financial instruments),
»  Derivative financial instruments measured at fair valie

The financial statements are presented in INK and all values are rounded to the nearast million {INR
000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies
The followitg are the significant accounting policies applied by the campany in preparing its financiaj

statements:

Current versus non-clrrent classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the Balance Sheet based ot current/non-current
classification. An asset is current when it js»

¢ Expected to be realised or intended to be sold o consumed in the normal operating cycle;

© Lxpected to be reallsed within lwelve months after the reporting peiod;

¢ Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
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3.2

All other assels are classified as non-current,

Adiability is current when:
o |tis expecied to be settled in the normal aperating cycle;
s |tis due 1o be seliied within twelve months after the reporting period;
o Held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
s There is no unconditional right to defer the setttement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current,

Deferred tax assels and lahllities are classified as non-ciivrent assets and liabilities.

Onperating cycle
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash
and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its normal operating cycle.

Service Concession Arrangemeant

Toll colection rights

The Company buikds infrastructure assets under public-ta-private Concession Arrangements which it
operates and maintains for periods specified in the Concession Arrangements,

Under the Concession Agreernants, where the Company has received the right to charge user's of the public
service, such rights are recognised and dassified as “intangibte Assets” in accordance with Appendix D to
Ind AS 115, Such right is not an unconditional right to receive cotisideration becatise the amounts are
contingent to the extent that the public uses the service and thus are recognised and classified as intangible
asseis, Such an intangible asset is recogpised by the Company at cost {which is the fair value of the
consideration received or recaivahle for the construction services delivered} and is capitalized when the
project is complete in all respects and when the company recejves the completion certificate from the
authority as specified in the Concesston Agreement. The ecanoinics of the project is for the entlre length of
the road / infrastructure as per the bidding submitted.

Premium Capitalization in Toll cojlection rights

The Company has contractual obligation to pay prerium {concession fees) to Nationat Highway Authority
of Indja {"NHAI"), Grantor, over the concession periad. Such obligation kas heen recognised upfraint on an
discounted basis when the project gets compieted as per the Cancession Agreements as ‘Intangible assets
= Toli Coltection Right’ and corresponding obligation for committed premium is recoginised as fiabilities,

Amortization of Toll coliection rights

The intangible assets which are recognised In the form of Toll fight ta charge users of the infrastracture
asset are amortized by taking proportionate of actual revenue received for the year over Total Projected
Revenue frarp‘?rojent ta Cost of Intangible assets i.e. proportionate of actual revenue earned for the year




3.3

3.4

Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statament for the year ended March 31, 2019

over Total Projected Ravanue from the Intangible assets expected to be earned over the balance concession
pertod as estimated by the management,

As required, total Projected Revenue reviewed by the management at the end of the each financia) year
and accordingly, the total projected revenve is adjusted to reflect any changes in the estimates which lead
to the actual collection at te end of the roncession period,

Foreign Currencies
The company’s financial statements are presented in AN, which is also the campany's functional currency,

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign curre ncy
amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date of the
transaction.

Monhetary assets and liabilities denominated in forsign currencies are transfated at the functional cuirvency

spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement of such transaction and on

translation of monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate

are recoghised In profit or loss with the exception of the following;

* Long-term foreign currency monetary items related to aceuisition of a fixed assel are capitalized and
depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asser,

Non-maonetory items that are measured i terms ol historical costin a foreign currency are translated using
the-exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions,

Property, Plant and Eqoipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at tost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment fosses, if any. Such cost comptise the purchase price, botrowing costs if the recognition criteria
are mel and directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to jts working condition for its intended tse,
When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the company

tdepreciates them separately based on their speciic usefui lives,

All othey expenses an existing property plant and equipment, including day-to-day repatr and maintenance
expenditure are charged tc the statement of profit and loss for the period durtng which such EXpenses are
incurred,

Derecopnition
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal, Any gain or lass arising on de-recognition of the asset
{calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amourit of the asset) is
included in the Statemant of Profit and Lass when the assel is de-recognised,
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Rohtak Panipat Tollway Private Limited
Notes ta Financial Statement for the year ended March 31,2019

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on the written down value methad basis over
useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule || to the Companias Act, 2013. When parts
of an item of property, plant and equipment have different usefil life, they are accounted foi as separate
items {Major Components} and are depreciated over their useful life or over the remaining useful life of the
principal assets whichever is less,

Depreciation for assets purchased/sold during a period is proportionately charged for the period of use,

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methad are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospeciive basis.

Intangible asseis:

litangibte assets acquired separately are méasuved -on initial recopnition at cost. Following initial
recognition, Intangible assets are capied at cost less accumulated amottisation and accumulated
impairment [nsses, if any

The useful fives of intanpible assets ara assessed as either finite or indefinite.

intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over thelr useful economic Hves and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impalired. The amortisation
periad and the amortisation method for an intangible assel with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of
consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify-the amortisation
period or methaod, a5 appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates, The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the Statemant of Profit and Loss.

Intangible assets with indefinite usefyl lives are nol amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite fife is reviewed annually
to deteriiting whether the indefinlte life continues to be supportable. |f not, the change in dseful fife from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis,

Gains or lusses arising from derecognition of an intahgible asset are measured as the difference bétween
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised jn the Statement of
Profit and Loss when the assel is deracognised.

Amortisation
Saltware is amortized over management estimate of its useful Hife of 3-6 years,

The residual value, useful live and method of depreciation of intangible assets are reviewed at each linancial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate,
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3.7

Impairment ~ Non-fimancial assats
The company assesgses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impajred.
H any Indication exists the cornpany estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable

‘amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in usae, The recoverable amount

is determined for an individual asset which is based on the discounting af estimated future cash flows to
their prasent value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset, In delermining net selling price, recent market transactions are
taken into account, if available, If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is
used. When the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the assat is considered
impaired and is written tlown to its recoverable amount. The impairiment loss is recognized in the statemeant
of profit and loss,

The Cotipany bases its Impairment caiculation on detailed budgats and forecasts calculation (DCF method).
These budgets and forecasts calculations generally covering a period of the concesston agreements using
long terms growth rates applied to future cash flows,

fntangible assets with indefinite usefu! lives are tested for Impairment annually as and when cireumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired,

Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contract with customer is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred
to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria describad below must also be met
befare revenue is recognized. The company has concluded that it is principal in jts revenue arrangements
hecause its typically controls services before transfe rring them to the customer,

I. Toll operation services

Revenue from Toll operation services is recognised over 4 period as each tol road-user simultaneously
receives and consumes the bepefits provided by the Company. However, given the short time period aver
which the company provides road aperating services to each road user {j.e. the duration of the time it tales
the road user to travel the length of the toll road), the Company recognises toll revenue when it collects
the tolls as per rates notified by Nationai Highway Authority of india.

il. Construction services
Revenue from construction services is recognised over a pertod as the customer simultaneously receivas
and consumes the bhenefits provided by the Company and measure revenue hased on input method i.e.
revenue recognised on the basis of cost incurred to satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the
total expected cost to the satisfaction of that performance obligation, If the outcome of a performance
obligation satisfied over time canpmot be reasonably measured, revenue is calculated using the zero-profit
method inthe amount of the contract costs incurred ancd probably recoverable, '
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Contract Balahces

. Contract Assets

3.8

3.9

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transfarred to the customer.
If the compapy performs by transferring goods or services to a cuslomer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional,

Contract Liabilities
A contract Hability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the company has

recelved consideration {or an amourit of consideration Is due) from the customer. if customer pays
consitleration before the company iransfers poods or services to the customer, a contract liability is
recoghized when the payment is due [whichever is earlier). Contract ligbifities are recognized as revenug
when the company performs under the contract,

Other Income

Galn or loss o1y saje of Mutual Fund

Gain or lpss on sale of mutial fund is recorded on transfer of title from the Company, and is determined as
the difference belween the sate price and carrying value of mutual fund and other incidental expenses,

Interest

For all debt Instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income I8 recorded using the effective
{nterest rate {FIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments ar receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrumant or a shorter period, whera appropriate, ta the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial lability. When calculating the effeclive
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of
the finardal insirument {(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not
consider the expected credit losses. interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit
and loss,

Dividend
incomée from dividend on investment Is accrued in the year in which it is daclared, whereby right ta recelve
is estabiished,

investment Property

Investment Property is measured nitially at cost including related transaction costs. Such cost comprises
the purchase price, horrowing cost if capitalization ciitecdda are met. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at costless accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss,
it any. All day-ta-day repair and maintenance expanditure are charged to the statement of profit and lass
far the period during which such expenses are Incucrad,

An investment property is derecoghized on disprosal or on permanently withdrawal from use or when ho
mic benefits are expected from its disposal, Aoy gain or loss arlsing on de-recoghition of the
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asset [calculated as Lhe difference between the nat disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the Statement of Prafit and Loss when the assetis derecognized.

3.10Borrowing costs )

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an assat that
necessafily takes a subistantial period of time to get ready forits intended use or saie are capitalized as part
of the cost of the respective asset, hvestment income earned on temporary Investment of specific
borrowing pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the horfowing costs ekgible for
capitafization. All olher borrowing costs are expensed in the year they occur, Borrowing cost consist of
interest and other costs that company incurs i connection with the borrowing of funds as defined in Indian
Accounting Stantlard 23 - Borrowing Cost.

3,11 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the suhstance of the
arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the
arrapgement is dependent on the use of a specific asset of assets or the arrangement conveys a right to
use the asset or assets, even if that fight is not explicitly specified inan arrangement.

Company as lessee

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lzase or an operating lease. A lease that transfers
substantially all the risks and rewsrds incidental Lo nwnership to Lhe company is classified as a finance lease,
An operating lease is a lease ather than a finance lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an operaling expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line hasis over the leasa term except the case where incremental lease reflacts inflationary effect
and lease expense Is accounted in such case hy actual rent for the period.

3.12 Financial Instrumaents

A financial Instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability

or equity instrment of andther entity,

a)  Financial assets

. Initlal recognition and measurement of financial assets
Alt financial assels are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are direetly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets that are not at fair value through profit or lass are added to the fair
vature on inittal recoguition.

fi.  Subsequent measurement of financial assets .
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in below categories;

e Financial assets at amortized cost
° Financial assets at fair value through profit or toss (FYTRL)
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A financial asset s measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business moadel whose abjective
is tn hold financial assets in order to coliect conkractisal cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financtal asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payinents of principat and
interest {SPPI) on the principal amount putstanding.

o Debt instruments at amortized cost
A "debt nstrumend’ Is measured at the amortized cost if both the above conditions mentioned in
“Financial assets al amortized cost” are met, Affer initlal measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortized cosi using the effective interest rate {FIR) method. Amaortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acyuisition and fees ar Costs
that are an integral part of the EiR. The EIR amortization is inciuded in finance income in the profil
orloss, The losses arising from fmpalrment are recognized in the profit or loss,

a Financial assets at fair value through profit ar loss:
FYTPLis a residual category for financial assets, Any financial asset which does not meet the criteria
for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTQC is classified as at FVTPL.

De-recognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset is de-recognized when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or the Company has transferyed its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset ar
has asswmed any obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a 'pass-through’ arrangement; and elther {a) the Company has transferred substantially al the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially
ali the risks and rewards of the agset, bt has transferred control of the asset.

When the Carmnpany has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retaipeet the risks and rewards of
awnership, Whan it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of
the assaet, nor transferred cantrol of the asset, the Company continues to recognize the transferred
asset {0 the extent of the Comparny's continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also
recognizes an associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on &
hasis that reflects the rights and ebligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at
the fower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Campany colid be required to repay.

hmpalrment of financial assets

The Company recognizes foss allowances using the expected-credit loss (ECL} model for the financial
assels. Expected credit logses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless thers has
heen a significant increase in credit risk from inltdal recognition in which case those are measured at
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allowance at the reporting date te the amount that is required o be recognized as an mpairment gain
or fess in:profit or {oss,

The Campariy follows 'simplified approach’ for recophition of impairment loss allowance on:

- Other receivahles

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognizes irpairment loss allowaiice based on lifelime ECLs at each reporting date, ylght
fram its initial recognition.

b) Financial Liabllities
i Initial recognition and measuremant of financial liabilities
The Company's financial fabilities include trade and ather payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdralts and derivative financial instrumensts.

All financial liabilities are recognized inittaily at fair value in case of loan and borrowings and payable,
falr value is reduced by directly attributable transaction costs.

ii. Subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
The maasurement of financial Habilitles depends on their classification, as described below:

o Financlal liabHities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabtlities at fair value through profit or loss inciude financial llabilities designated upon
inittal recognition as at fair value through profit or foss (FVIPL).

Financiat liabilities designated upon Initial recognition at fair value through profit of loss are
designated at the initial date of recoghitian, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied, For
Hahilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses on changes in fair value of such liability are
recognized i;\ the statament of profit or loss,

o lLoans and Borrowings
After initial recognitir'm; interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method, Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or preminm on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The £IR amortisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and foss, This category generally applies to borrowlngs.

e Equity component of Compound financial instruments
The Company has borrowed subordinate debt in nature of Sponsors contribution in the project as per
e JECRIrEMeENt of loan agreemant, which the company has classified in the other equity as the same is
g mabie at the Company's optien and without coupon as pei terms of contract,

SR
AN g
TG
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iil. Derecognition af financial liabilities
A tinancial libility (or a part of a financial liability} is derecognised from its balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the cantract is discharged or cancelied or explired.

When an existing financial #iability is replaced by another lability from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liabilily are substantially madilied, such an
exchange or modificatinn is freated as the de-recognition of the ariginal liability and the recognition
of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amount is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss

c) Darivative finapcial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as options and interest rate swaps, to hedge
its foreign currency risks and interest rate visks. These derivative contracts does not qualify for hedge
accounting under ind AS 109, financial instrurment and are initlally recognized at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measvred at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as financlal assets when the falr value is positive and as financial fiabilities when
the fair value is nogative, Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are
takean directly to profit or loss

d)  Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and thie net amount is reported in the balance sheetf
if the Company currently has enforceable legaf right to offset the recognised pimounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities stmultaneously.

3.13 Fair Value Measurement
The company measures financial instruments such as derivatives and Investment in Mutual Fund at fair
valua at each halance sheet date.

Fair vajue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a lability in an orderly
transaction betweer market participants at the rmeasurement data. The fair value measurement assumes
that the transaction to seil the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

+ In the principal market for the asset or liability, ar

+ o the absence af a principal markel, in lhe most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous markef must be accessible by the Company.

The fair vaiue of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the assat or Hability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,
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A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
generate econoimic benefit by using the assetin its highest and besl use or by selling It to anather market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use,

The company uses valuation techniguies that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
datd are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unobservable inputs,

Al assats and fahllities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statemenis are

categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, hased on the fowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

» Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or fiabiiities

* Level 2 ~ Valuation technigues for which the lowest |evel input that is significant to the fair value
measurement ts directly or indirectly abservable

+ Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowesi level input that is significant to the fair vaiue
measurement is unobservable

For assats and fabilities that are recognised in the financial statemeants an a recurring hasis, the company
determines whather transfers have oceurred between lavels in the hierarchy by re-assessing.categorization
(based on the lowest fevel inpul that is significant to the fak value measurement as a whoie) at the epd of
each reporting periad,

The company’s management determines the policies and procadures for both recirting fair valye
medsurement, such as derivalive instrunments

Al each reporting date, the management analyses the piavements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are recuired to be re-measured or re-assessed as per lhe cofmpany’s actounting policies. For this
analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information tn the valuation computation to contracts and ather relevant dactiments.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external
sources ta determing whether the change is reasonable on yearly basis,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Campany has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the hasis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset of liability and the level of the fair value
hierarchy, as explained above.

3.14Employee Benefits
a) Short Term Employee Benefits
All emplayea benefits payable are expecled to he seltled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are classified as short term benefits. Such benefits include salaties, wages, bonus, short
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term compensation etc, and the same are recoghized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss in
the period In which the employee renders the related services.

b) Post-Employment Benefits

(i} Defined contribution plan

The Company's approved provident fund scheme is defined contribition plans. The Company has no
obtigation, other than the contribution paid/payatile under such schemes. The condribution paid/payable
under the schornes is recognised and charged to statement of profit B loss accolnt during the period in
which the employee randers the relatad service.

(i) Deflred benefit plan

The amplayee’s gratuity scheme is a defiied benefit plan, The present value of the abligation under such
defined benefit plans is determined based on the actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Methorl
as at the date of the Balance sheet,

Re-measwrements, comprising of actuarial gains and lasses, the effect of the asset celling, excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recognised inumediately in the
Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to refained earnings through Other Comprehensive
income {OCH ity the period in which they oceur, Re-measuremants are not reclassifiecd to Statement of Profit
and Loss in subsequent periods,

Net interest Is calcedated by applying the discount rale to the net defined henafit liability or asset, The
Company recopiises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an. expense in the
Statement of profil and foss:

o Service costs comprising curreént service costs, past-service costs, gains and iosses on curfalments and
non-routine settements; and

» Net Interest expense or incomne

c) Other Employment benefits

The employee’s compensated absences, which is expectad to he utilized or encashed within the next 12
months, is trealed as short-term employee benefit. The company measures the expected cost of such
absences as the additional amount thet it expects to pay as result of the unusad entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date. As per Company's policy, 1o leave are expected 1o be carried forward
lseyond 12 month from the reporting daie,

3.15Incomae fax
Income tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax.
Current Tax
Cugrent income tax assets and liabiities are weasured at the amount expected lo be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with Income lax 1967, The tax rates and tax laws used to
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Current incame tax relating to items recoghised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss
(either in other comypirehensive income or in equity). Current income tax are recogniset! in correlation Lo
the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management
periodically evaltates positions taken in the tax returns with vespeck Lo sityations in which applicable lax
regulations are subject Lo interpretation and estahlishes provisions where aporopriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax is recognized on termporary
differences between the tax bases of assets pnd liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax llabilitias are recognised for alf taxahle temporary differences excepl when the deferred tax
liability arises from the initiat recognition of an asset or Hability in a transactfon that affecis neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
losses and carry forward of unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit wilf be
available against which those temporary differences, losses and tax credit can be utilized except when the
deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recoegnition of an
asset or liakility in a transaction that affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or logs,

As per provision of income tax Act 1961, the Company is elfigible for a tax holiday under section BOIA for a
block of 10 consecutive assessment year out of 20 year begining of toll operation, The current year is sixth
year of company's operation and il propose to start claiming tax holiday In the subsequent year only. No
deferred tax (assets or liabilities) is recognized in respect of temporary difference which reverse during tax
holiday period, to the extent such gross total incorme s subject to the deduction during the tax holiday
period. Deferred tax in respect of timing difference which is reverse after the tax holiday period is -
recopnised in the year in which the timing difference originate. However, Lhe cormnpariy rastricts recognition
of deferred lax assets to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit wili be
available to aliow ail or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. For recognition of deferred tax,. the
timing difference which originate first are considered to reversa first,

The carrying amount of deferrad tax asscts are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to ilie
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each regorting date
and are recoghized to the extent that it has become jprobable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and fabilities are measured al: the tag rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset Is realized or the liablity is settled, based an the tax rules and tax laws that have been
d o substantively enacted by the end of the reparting period.
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Deferred tax assets and deferved tax Hahilitios are offsei, where company has a fegally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against cusrent tax Habilities and the deferred taxes relate t¢ the same taxable
entity apnd the same taxation authority.

3.16 Provisions
General
Provisions are recoghized when the company has a present ohligation (fegal or constructive) as a result of
past event and it is prohable that an outflow of resources embodying econormic benefits will be reguired to
setlle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation. The expense
relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss et of any reimbursement, if any,

if the effect of the time value of maney is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-{ax rate
that réfects current market assessiments of the Hme value of money and the tisks specific 1o the lability.
When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recoghized as a finance
cost. Provislon are reviewed at each balance sheet and adjusted to reflect the current bast estimates.

Contractual obligation to restore the infrastructure to a specified level of serviceability

The Campany has contractual obligations to maintain the road to a specified level of serviceability or restore
the road to a specified condition before it is handed over to the grantar of the Cancession Agreements,
Such obligations are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the
abligation at the balance sheat date, The timing and amount of such cost are estimated and determined by
estimatad cash flows, expected 1o be incurred in the year of overlay. The cash flows are discounted at a
curient pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to such obligation, The unwinding of the discount is
expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated
future costs of such ehligatinon are reviewad annually and adjusted as appropriate,

3.17 Contingent llabitities

A contingent liability is a possibie obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be canfirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncartain future events beyond the control of the
Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of
resourees will Be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where Lhere is a liability that cannot be recogrized because it cannet be measured reliably, The Company
does not recognize a contingent liability bul discloses its existence in the financial statemerits, Contingent
llabifities are reviewed at cach balance sheet date

3.18 Cash and cash equivaients
Cash and cash equivalenis inthe balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term depaosits
with on original maturity of three months ar less, which is subject to aninsignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpase of the staterent of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and short term
deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered as integral part of
the,,,Cqm any’s cash management.
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3,19 Earnings per share
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit / loss (or the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted
average numbier of shares outstainding during the year,

Diluted EPSis catculated by di'viding the profit / loss attributable to eqity holders by the weighted average
nuimher of shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of shares that would be
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential eg ully shates into equity shares.

3.205egment roporting
Based ont management approach as defined in Indian Accaunting Standard 108 — Operating Segmeant,
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting privvided to the chief
aperating decision maker for evaluation of Company’s. performance.

3.21Changes accounting policies and disclosure
New and amended standards
The Company applied Ind AS 115 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of
adoption of these new actounting standards are described below.

Ind A5 115 Revenue from Contracts with Customer

Ind AS 115 was issued on 28 March 2018 and supersedes Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts and Ind AS 18
Revente and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers.
Ind AS 115 establishes a flve-step madel to account for revenue arising frem contracts with customers and

zequnu that revenue be recogriised at an amaunt that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects
“to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer,

Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise judgement, taking into consideration ail of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the inodel 1o contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtainliy & contract and the costs thivectly related to
fulfilling a contract. In addition, the standard requires extensive disclosyres.

The Company adopted tnd AS 115 ushng the modified retrospactive method of adoption. There were no
sighificant adjustments required to e retained earnings as at April 01, 2018, The adoption of the standard
ditl not have any miaterial impact on these financial statements,

Several ather amendments and interpretations apnly for the first time in March 2019, but do not-have an
inpact on the (inancial statements of the Company. The Company has hol early adopted any standards or
amendments that have been issued hut are not yet effective.

4, Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumpions
The preparation of the Company's financial statements refuires mandgement to make estimates,
judgmmgt\s\and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liahilities

\qnd l‘lf\e\qc npanying disclosure, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
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assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of assets arliahilities affected in future periods,

tstimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the futiire and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustrent to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and
estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions abaut Fulure develapiments, however, may change due to market chapges or
circurstances arising that are heyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they nccur.

falr valtie measurement of financial instritments

When the fair vatues of financial assets and financial liabllities recorded in the balange sheet cannot be
measuved based on quoled prices in active markets, their tair value is measured using valuation techniques
including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
bt where this is not feasible, a depree of judgment is vequired in establishing fair values, Judgments Incude
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit.risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these
tactors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax credits to the extent that it is probakle that taxable profit
will be available against which the credits can he utifised. Significant ranagement judgment is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
tevel of fulure taxable profits together with future tax planhing strategies.

tmpairment of non-tinancial assets

hmpairment exists when the carrying value of an assei Dr cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less
costs of disposal catculation is based on available data for similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for dispesing of the asset. The value in use calculation'is based on a DCF model. The cash
flows are derived from the budget generally covering a period of the concession agreements using long
terms growth rates and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the asset's performance being tested. The recoverable
amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF maded as well as the expected futire cash-inflows
and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.

Intangible Assets

The intangible assets which are recognized in the form of toll right to charge users of the infrastructuse
asset are amotlized by taking proportionate of actual revenue recelved for the year over Total Projected
Revenue from project to Cosl of Intanglble assets. The estimation of total projectien revenue reguires
significant assumption about expected growth rate and traffic projestion for future. All assumptions are
revie 5{\1@’({1”41@: b reporting date ‘

P C
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Pravision for periodical Major Maintenance

Frovision for pertodical Major Maintenance obligations are measured at the hest estimate of the
expenditure that would be required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. The timing and
antount of such cost are estimated and determined by estimated cash flows, expected to he incurred in the
year of overlay. All assumptions are reviewed at each reposting date,

Revenue from contract with customer

The Company use the input method for recagnise construction revenue. Use of the input method require
the company to estimate the efforts or costs expended to the date as a proprortion of the total efforts or
tosts to be expended. Efforts or cosis expended have been used to measure progress towards completion
of pefarmance obligation as there Is a direct relationship between input and productivity. Provision for
estimated fossas, if any, on uncompleted performance obligation are recarded in the period in which such
lussess hecome prohable based an the expected contract estimates at the reporting date.
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4 Propurly, Plant andg Exltipments i . {INR tn Millinn)
Partheutars Maclinery & Compuless  Furpiluce K Fixtures Veiicles Office Equipments TntalTnilglblu
Equbpments e - . Assnts

Grpss blodk
As at Aprll 04, 2017 .72 0,33 .y 1,60 0.09 190
Addijion 027 - - {67 0.hi 148
Disprosal § adgistmest . . L - - o - -
As at March 31, 2018 i 0.59 033 0.0 136 _ (LR3 EET
Addition - - - - . -
isposat/ adjrshoenl - - - S . -
As at March 31, 2049 0.9% 0.33 07 1,36 0.63 3,38
Accomisitaed Deprediation
Asat Apil 0L, 2007 0.2 0,19 o4 0,58 o4 0.5}
Charge bor thpyear 4 oy - .16 0o 140
Disposal / adjiistment - - . B - E
As ot Mareh 31, 2018 0,49 026 004 kL] 014 0.9y
Charge for e yia i 0.09 0.06 . .27 0.22 0.64
pigposal £ adjustonent B - B - - ;
As at March 31, 2018 Y 032 0.04 [ o has 1L
Hei Block .
As t March 31, 2018 B 0.40 n.o7 ..op3 .02 0.42 241
As al Mareh 31, 2039 71 0.1 0.0 0.7 0.7 170

Haotug:

1 e Company has elected to continue with the canybag valve Tor ol of its prope:ty, plant and 2quipaients as reeogeised Inits grevions GAAT Tingncial {indlan zecounting
prnciple genurally accepiad-in \ndia 85 peeseribed winler secting 133 of Lhe Act, rrad vath Rade 7 ol the Companies [Accounas) Rudas, 2014), as deemad cos) at the
(eapssition date Lo, Apdl 4, 2015 as per ogtinn peowilled unded dmd AL 301 far thas Hest e adoption.

triopiily Plast and Equipments bas ean pledged agzinst non-cun et Dovemaings In ecde Lo fulfill de collatera? requirement far tie Lendies. [refer nate 11}

~

i investmient Property N T Mitioh)
N Pariiculnzs ) Lani Toial
Gross blotl
AsatAprll 63,2037 1.03 i3

Addditon - -
Dledueiiong e -
As 8L Mareh 31, 2010 X
Adilitien -
Dedurtions . . .
As ot March 31, 2018 1.03 1.03

Accomdatel Depreciation
fs ol A prll 1, 2087
Charge foriho yeut
Gisposad / Adjushngnl . .
As zt Miich 35, 2018 B .
Charge Tor the year ' - N
Dsposal f Adjuslmig - -
As At Mirch 312, 2011 R .

Rut Block ! -
As at March 31, 2018 5.03 103
As A March 31, 2059 1.01 .03

tinles:

1 Thare are aodncomi arise frnm abave investmen propastios, Fansher, $he company has net incurred any expostditie: Jor above propedles.

T The abaui consist of 2 land which are situsted st Gl Bistricl and Haeyana Distriel has been mangaged ageinst non-cuprent horrowings o folfill the collateral
reruiremel of lemlers. {refer aing 14)

3 The Comgany has no conteactual obiliaions W parchase, consteuct op devatop fovestmen propeeties ar for repairs, matntenance amil enliancements,

4 The fal vafue disclosure for festment properdy fs pot presemed as e propesly specilicatly acquired for offedng a4 security for Dorrowings and based on the
infnrmation, thire are oo valisdal development in (he arca wharo Band is situsted and aceordingly, thay Liligve shat sere 35 nol mateial difference in fale value and
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# Amtangilale Assets o (IR iy Midllon]
Comgiiter ol Coitection
Pacliculars Sofivars iahts Total
Gross Motk
As at Aprll 01, 2017 Ve 18,310,70 18,310.97
Addition - - -
Disposal
Adjustmoent direg fhe yoar . -
Foign exchanpe dilferonce (iefer note 3 belows ) 8.76 o
Avat Maseli 31, 2018 0.27 18,310,498 18,3!9.)‘5_
Arldfion - -
Dispngai - - -
Adijtistment during the year - B
Forsign exchange difference {rele nole 3 Lslow) - 188,52 __ tausa
As at March 31, 2019 0.27 _ 18,508.60 J}].SOH.Z?

Accumuloted Depreciation

AsalAprlol, 2017 012 415,54 415,71
Chaige for e year 009 315,59 315.67
Disposad f adjuslesnt - - . -

As bt Marth 31, 1018 0.21 1,231.18 e Agtram
Chags dor the year 46,06 32497 3¥1.83
Uisposal [ adjistmont . - - .

Asat Marcl 31, 2019 L 027 507 1,553,721

Hetblack . N
As af March 33, 2015 i 0.06 17,088.30 17,008.36
As ai Maircl 33, 2020 i ol 16,955.03 16,955.06

tlogas:

1 i coffection rigits of four Toning of Rahiak -Panipot secton from Kin 63,30 of HH-10620 K 83,50 on 9H-1 0 Hhe state nf Haryana o Besign, Biilt, Furance, Operate and
Teansler [LRIDE) bass is cagitalisad vrhen the ginject is completa in alf respiecls sl whisn the Company cecives the completion certificata Trom (he anihorlly as
specified I (ha Concession Agsetnienl ok isut on curpletion of component bagis as e intended purpose ef e project is fo have the complnte length of fhe roan
available for use, Nefer note A2 far detail additonat disclosure puesuant 1o Apnesdly - € 0 ket A% 135 - Service Contession Arangentenls™ {'SCAY,

2 Toll eollection rights alse Inchude present witue of premiom payalde smdor the concesstod agrecment of INR G,2¢H.53 oilllioa al thic Hine of reecipss ceinpletion coriicate
[rom the athisdity.

3 The Company had adeplatd an aplion weder Para 46A oF AS 1L anter previous GAAR whvich the company las alaced Lo conliatie s per para DEZAA of Init A% 101 "First

e adoption Indiany Accounting Standand”, Aceordingly, the exchange difleraice alsing on reponting ol lang-teer Firelgn cunency muietary items, fn so far a5 they

sefale to thi aequisiiian of depreciable asser, i addnd or dedinctad fraas this cost af the asset and shall be anyertised over the balance $e of the asset,
A Toll colleciion right has baon pledged ngainsh nom coieen) byertisdngs b ordes o fEI0 the: cottai eral reqwirement nf the Leades frafor pote 14)
5 i?!nﬁ)rét;:{n‘u}?ﬁa 1sglian petion for the Yol éatiectinn rights at the eied af the reporting period §3 17,00 yeads {Nwehy 31, 2018; 18,06 years),
4 ‘ B (f\’u
(A atas

PR
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i0

Nale;

i1

Iavestments {carrent} Macch 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Million} {IMN i MiHiond
Uriguaoted .
twestments caread ot fair value through profit or loss
i el {39 March 2018: 11,313.86} ih UTI Floating Bate Fumt - Direcl Grovihi - 31.90
Tatal : T 3106
Aggrepate amount of Unqueted fivestmenis - 31.96
Cash and bank halances Mareh 31, 2019 March 31, 20185
. {INR {n Million) {INR I Million}
Cash ane bank equivaients
Cashian Hani 4.34 135
Galances with hanks
n Carrenl Accounisi G.28 11,14
10,62 14,39

it falance with bank includes halance of NI 5,38 million [March 31, 2018: INR D.05 million) lying in the esceow accounts which is usabie
ac par s of Gorrowinps with the ipaders.

Qther finnncial assots {unsecyred, considered good) Mareh 31,2019 farch 31, 2018
{IKR (13 Mitlion) {INR tn Miilion}

don currept

Security doposits 0.0t 003

Derivatives not designated as bedges - 137,23
Total {A) 0.0 1371

Curient '

Toll raceivibile 3.1 1.24

Recoivaie Trom NHAL - Tall Susprension (refer note 1 balow) He.B8 91,69

fleceivabie from MHAL- Arhitrallon cialin {refer nole 2 below) BRY.53 HR9.53
Tatal {0} 96033 202.46

Total {£ = A + 0} 980.34 1,110.70

furstant. o demometisation, aushoriies had anaounzed suspenstan of ol collectinn al all voads lrom Noveniber U4, 230 nntil
Deceatber 2, 2016, Based on subsequent telilication ang provisions of concession agreempnt willy the relavant authoritles, the
compaiy has Chained and racugnised rovesnne of 1IN 126,04 million during Lhe peavious year eaded March 31, 2017, ot of witich 1N
3R.45 million is yel W be reafized as 8t Maieh 32, 2000, )

Prirsant Lo il Tovonable aebitration award, e company has demanded 75% of clalm amount from NHAT {authority} as per Niti Aayog
dreuiar no. i 1A0T0/14/2016-TPRAU. Consaquent 1o further appeal igathst the algresald order by the authority, the Honourable tligh
Count ol Delhi { the court) had oriered tie authorily, vide oedie date ity 11, 2035 to déposit 50% of clabm amount with the coutt sl
paypnent of Dalpce 25% against Lhe bank guaraniea. This fuis been challenged by the compiany for payment ot eatire 75% of clalm
amount which s been admitted vide onler date Octeber L1, 2018, The company is in protess of claiming bafence 25% amount from
adthosily, Pursuant (o the above, the managament is confident to realisre this gntire clalor amosunt and dues net expect any adjustment
in theie regasds,

Other assels {Unsecured, considesed pood) March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
(113 Ip Millioat) [INR i Mo}

flap current

Adyanee ncome tax {net of provision) ) A.7% 4,11
Total {A}, ban 4,11

Cugrent’

frapaid expenses &5.61 h.24

Tax rredii receivable 1.71 .87

Stafl advancas 0.01 nol

Advances 1o suppllars .20 D.45

ﬁ'lﬂri‘?if'fi““ {rafer note 353 0.3k 3.11

Tatal {B} 1701 BT

Total (€= A+ B} W4 14.79% -
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£qsily share eapital Maich 3t, 2019

March 31, 2018

No. of sharas {INTE Iy Ml ) Nao., af shares {INR tn Million}
Authodeed share capiial
Eauiiy Ehares of INR 10 each 50.40,000 HLE0 50,100,060 50,00
50,00,060 50.00 56,00,000 50..9_9_
Issued, subsesihed ant faitly pald up
Erpuity $hares of INR 10 gach J1,86,445 14 21,8645 21.85
21,86,495 21.86 21,86,445 2186

Reconcilation of shares outstandivg at the heglnoliyg and at the cud of the seporiiing perdod

Partictdurs Mareh 31, 2018 March 41, 2010

. No, of shiiras {INR 1o paidiion) No, of sharés (IR In Millfon)
Al the beginoing of the year 21,86,04% 21.86 21,86,445 11.85
Ald: Issue during the year - - - o
Qutstanding at the end of the yim 23.86,445 2LUG 21,86,445 24.86

Tess/Mights attached tu the enuity shirps:
e Company las pnly ono wass af shaes relpired 1a os ottty shares having

The amouhl disiabuted witi b in papsrtion w the numiber of caquity shares held by the sharehoiders,
Share hald by lioiting Company:

apar vakie of IR 10 each, Gack shareholdur s entitng Lo one Vol peY shara ledd, In thn event
ol liquidation of tho Company, the hotders of etasily shares shall be entited 1o receive any of the residund assels of the Connpany, afles

distribittlon of ail priferentiat amonists

Quit ol edquily shares issued by the TPy, Shares held by ils bolding Loy, iimate bokling company and their stbsidlaniesfssockies ace as hoelpw:

Sadhbav infraseuctige Project Limited - Holdirig Corpany
LIAGALS [March 11, 2058: 2,186,045 } equiy shares

Nymber of shares ield by each shareholder holding mare han 5% Stares [y Lhe COthpiny

March 31, 2019
{INI I Mililum)

March 31, 2010
{NR 1 Million}

21 .86 2186

March 31, 2019

March 31, 1016

Farticaiars Nn. of shaves % of shnreiialding

No. of sharag % ull shareholting

Equiity shares of {ts 10 pach Nilly patd

Sadbliw fntrastrociure Project Limited and Its nominees 21,86,415 L5

21,086,445 1an#

As per the fecords af e eompisny, incloding its sogisters of sharehotters/member and olier deciaration receiverd fram shareholiers repasding benalicial nlerct, the alsee

shayshalding represdnis byl liegal and beneficial ownership of shares.
Other errully

Eguily component of compaund Hnabeia) Instiument - perpetual debts {refey nate | batow & 3
Dalosice at the beghnling of the Year

Batanse at the el of the year - Tolaf [A)
Securities provsdum {refer nnta fi lielow)
Balance at the Deglyiing of e yoar
Balanze a1 the end of the year Tnlal (B}
{Delicit} a stateiment of profit and loss
Balance at {he keginning of the year '
Adicf loss for the yepr
Ad / [Lass) Othor comiprehtnsive ncome for Uie voar
Balante al the exd of tia year Tataf (C)

Total {DeA+BHC]

Mnrchﬂsl‘ 2018
{TNR it Midllon)

Marcly 31, 2019
{INR Tn Millon}

2,200.06 220006
2,209,06 2,209.06
134 8H 195.88
195,38 195.80

{5,226.15) {1,777.96)

{1,860.71) {5,4498.323
1,28 Q.14

{B,DHG.SD) (6,26.16)

(5,081.65) TR

T Project nf e Campay Bas boen finded through perpetual dobi of 2,200.56 niililan (ren 1 Sponsors i iirordance with Sponsor Suppart and Edity Contriheiion
Agreament J Sponsor Uedarlaking. Such perpotual dalits i coislilirad a5 sponsor’s coninbutlen io ensure HoROIoEs commitrend, for the project. Perpelisal diebt 15 inorest
fre mii shall be repavable at the el of the canzession peried or esificr at the option of e cempany in accordance virh terms of conteat,

Secirlty prensdving is uscd o e the preiusts o issue of issue of shares. Thi osierep can bie vlitised only for lmited munose such

ncmnlangr__gwiila;rhgﬁ gvlsinns of the Companips Acl, 2013

i
s

as issuance of bonuy shares i

; ~
\HM@BAD 5
| .




Rohtak-Panipat Taljway Private Limited
Notes to Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019

14

1)

Non-cosrent borrowings March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR bz Million) {INR In Miltion)
Secured*
Term loan from barks
Inclian ruypes 8,215.04 ,416.33
Foreign currancy - 2,430.68
Loan from financial institution 1LO6E 7S _ 1,095.63
Tokal {A} 9,202.83 9,942.64
Less: Current maturities of non-current borrowing® {refer noge 18)
Secured
“Term loan from banks
Inelkan ruper 434.4L 150.18
Foreign ciarency - 35,95
Laan rom financial institution 41.87 27.84
Totak {B) 376.28 222,497
Total Non-current horrowings (C= A - B) B,006.55 9,710.67

* Includes the effect nf transaction cost paid 1o Lenders on uplront basis.

Nature of security:

The details of Security in respect of Teim loans are as undern:

first morigage ang r}nrge on all the Company’s immavable (fovestment) properties, bath present and future, save and excepl the Project
Asiels;

first ¢harge on af the Company’s. tangible moveable assets, including moveabla plant and machinery, msachinéry spares, tools and
accessaries, furiture, figtures, vehicles and all other miovableé assets, bisth present and Tuture, save and except the Project Assers;

first charge over sli acenunts of the Coinpany including the Escrow Accsunt end the Sub-dccounts {or any account in substitution thereof]
that muay be opened in accordance with Comimen Rupee Loan Agreement and Lthe Suppitmentary Escrow Agreement, or any ather Project
Documents inchuding but not limited 1o Debt service reserve {'DSRYY and Major malntaioance reserve (MMR') and alt funds from time (o
time depositad therein, incliiling those arsipg ot of realisation of Receivable and all Permitted Investments or other securities
represenling all arounts credited thereto.

first charge on all intangibles assets of the Company including but not iimiled to goodwill, rights, undertakings and uncalted capital present
and fulure excluling the Project Asssis.
{Irst charge an assignment Hiy way of security in:

- all the right, title, interest, banefits, claims and demands whatsoever ol the campany in the Project Documents;

the tight, tiile-and interest of the Company in, ta and under all Lhe clearances;

all the right, title, interest, benefits, daims ant denvands whatsoever of the company i any tetter of credit, guarantee including tontractor
guasrartees and liquidated damages and performanee bond pravided by apy party to the Project Qocuments;

all the right, $itle, interest, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever of the company under all insurance contracts,

pledge of equity shares held by Sacibhay Infrastructive Project Lud. aggregating to 51% of the paid up and voting squity share capitat of the
cornpany {or a period vpto repayment of eatire borrowings.

the aforesaid mortgages, charpes, assignmends and gearantens and the pledge of eqoity shares as stipulated in paragraph 6 ahove shaii in
#ll respocts rank pari-passu inter-se amongst the Lenders, in accordance with the common loan agreement, without aay preference or
pno/pptm g.aver the other op others;

/\\\gUi _
P

-},.‘n




Rohtak-iFanipat Tollway Private Limitod
Notes to Financial Statements for the year esded March 21, 2019

(i)

Terms of repayient of loans:

{a) Indian rupee term loans from banks and financiaf institution:

The princlpal amounts of thejoan o each of the lenders shall be repayable in 43 strictured euarterly instalments on the last tay of sacls
quarler, cenvimencing from thie expiry of monatariim period (72 quarters from initlal drawdown date 1.e, March 30y, 2001). The last date
of lsstalment 35 March 31, 2027.

Terin Joans carry finkerest al bank base rate plus 200 basis peint as speead fe, 11.60 1o 12,10 per cent per annitm as oo March 3%, 2019.

{b} Fareign currency loan:

froring the year the company has enlered inta an agreement dated December 20, 2018 with [CICH bank limited Tor refinancing of foreign

currency Indn. Accordingly the réfinancing for oulstanding USD 37.21 million loreign eurrency loan was completed on Decamber 24, 2018,

{11} Loan covenants

15

16

17

Won current borrowings contain loan covenants relating to debt-equily ratio aid debt service coverage ratio. The Company has niet been
ihie Lo rmeet one of the covenants viz debl senvice caverage ralio s at the end of the year, In the oplnion of the management, this does not
irave aiy financial or other irnplication as regards these financial statement.

Current borrowings March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INfUTn Mittion) {INR In Million}

Loans repayable on demand
Related parties {unsecured}* {refer nate 31) ‘ 2,286,72 1,3772.62
Totat 7,286,72 1,372,672

*Loan Is repayable oo demand / éall notice from the lender and it carry inierest of 11.15% ner annum
M ¥ H

Provisiuns March 31,2018 Maich 31, 2018
{INR In Mikion} {INR {n Million)
Mon curront
Pravision for employee benefits-gratuity {refer note 29) : 1,02 0.90
Pravision for perlodical rajor maintenance {refer note 30) 216,17 712.02
Tatal non current {A) 217.19 712.92
Current
Provision for empioyee benefits-eave encashmeant 0.13 015
Provision for employee benefils-gratuity [refer note 20} 0.08 -
Frovision for periodicat major maintenance {refer note 30} 759.72 -
Tetal current {B} 759.93 0.15
Total {C= A+ 1) 977.12 713.07
Trade payables March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
{INR In Mithion} {INR 10 Million}
Tatal suitstanding dues of micra and small enterprises® - -
Totat oulstanding dues of ceeditors otherthan miceo and small enterprises {refer note 31) ) a4.77 32.19
' - Totad 44,77 32,19

*As per information avoilable with the Company, there ari no Micre; Siall and Medium Enterpprises os defined jn-the Micro, Small and
Merlium Enterprise Developiment Act, Z006 to whom the Company avwes dues on.account of principal amount together with interest and
accordingly no related additional disclosure have been matte In these finanelal staternents, This has been refied upon by the audiiors.




Rolitak-Panipat Toliway Private Limited
Notes to Financiat Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018

18 Other financial liabHities March 31, 2019 March 31,2018
(INR in Million) {INR (n MiHion}
Premiuim obligation payoble o NHAI 6,819.51 6,785.005
Less ; Current matusiy of premium obligation {147.20} {51.51)
G6,672.21 6,733,504
Deferrad premiom obfigation {refer nole 1 below) 2,473,149 1,898.86
(nterest accrued on defereed premiam obligation {refer noto 1 below) 5(19,59 31537
Total (A} 9,654.99 2,947,717
Cursent
Current matiizities of non-curepnt borrowings {refer note 14} 376G.28 222.97
Current matwitles of premium oblisation trefer above) 193.81 51.51
Interess peeried on delerrad prensivim abligation 4,38
Interasi noeruad but not duee on borrawings - 53.91
Interesl acerued and due on borrawings [refer note 31) 533.20 a2.71
Cmployee emoliments pavable 1.71 1,52
Deferred opttot premium - 4,88
Payable tawards capital goods (refer noie 31) 588.01 G07.20r .
Payable towards utility shifting work {reler note 31} 1.56 1.56
Other payable : 0.47 -
Total (b) 1,734.03 1,260.26
Total (C= A + B) 11,300.03 10,216,03
Note:

1 Presmivra oblizgation under the Concession Agreement has been deferred by NBAI vide its senction letter dated june 10, 2014, According fo
the terms of the sanction léttar corapany shall pay entire deferred premium and interesi thereon no later than one year prior fo the expiry
of the éoncession perlod, Amount of premium obligation which bas not been defairod are payable in unequal monthly instalments, in
terms af the sanction letter, during the concession period. Agcordingly, the deferred obligatinn has been ciassified as non current Habilities,
As per the Ministry af Read Transport & Highways policy of National Highway Authorities of India {NHAI), the company i liable (o make

“payment of Interast on Deferment of Premium at Bank Rate + 266 p.a.which is eharged to stalement pf profit & loss account for the year
andd pbligatian on the same has been recopnised as liahilitles.

19 Other current tiabilities March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

{INR 10 MiHlion) {INR in Million)
Statutory duos 25,00 17.86
Contracl iieﬁ"x_ijil,Lngrefcr note 15} 1.15 0581

Total 27.05 18.37
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Raohtak-Panipat Tolway Privato Limited
Notes to Financinl Statements for the year onded March 31,2019

20

21

22

23

24

25

Revanue fram operations

Revenue from coatract with customir {rofer note 35}
Revene from toll ancration seryices
Revenue from constriclion services
Tolal

Mareh 33, 2019
{INR In Milllon)

Miarch 31, 2018
{NR in Milllon)

'1,065.30 1,310.58
f.11 522.25ﬁ
1,073.41 1,832.83

Other income

Interest incamae:
on fixed deposil with hasks
or arbitration claim
Income on change i faly valuation of financisl instruments
Gain on sale of mutusl funds
instrance elaim received
Total

Operalibg oxpenses

Tall pplaza and mad operations & maintonanse gkpenses (including payment to sub contractars) {raler
nate 31)
Periodic major maintenance expense {refar note an
Power and fuet
Secdrily expenses
Total

Employee Benefils Expenses

Salarias, wapes and other allowances (refer note 29}
Cantribution to provident fund and other fund (refer note 29)
Gratuity expense {reler nole 29)

5talf welfare espeasas

Finance rost

Interest expanses on:
Rupos term oans
Fafetgh curvency foan
Short térm borcowings {rofer note 31}
Deferment of pramibun obligatinn
EPC contractors' claim {refer notp 44}
Unwinding of discount un provision of MMR {iafer note 40)
Unwinding of discount on NHAL premivii {refer note 15)
Less on ehaige ih fair vaiatsn of financid tnstriments
Amorlisation of procissing fees
Other borrowing costs
Total

Depreciation and amortization
Depreclation oh tangible assets {refor note 5)

Amartization on intangitle assets {refer note 7
Total

March 31, 2019
{INR In Million)

March 31, 2018
(iR I Million}

552 -
g 128.40
51.58 -
2.74 194
: 5.13
5944 135.47

March 31, 2019
[INR th Million)

March 31, 2018
{INR In MEllion)

6005 511K
168,70 148,80
9.71 9,13
11,76 11.46
257.02 259,57

March 31, 2019
(IR i1 Million)

March 31, 2013
{INRIn MfTon)

21.43 19.99
1.95 1,77
0.47 Q.40
4.26 4.13

28.11 26,29

March 3l, 2019

Maich 31, 2048

[INR I Millian) {INR In Mithian)
941.18 960.61
13211 153,24
210.98 154.92
220.66 153.31

- 88.06
85,17 58.14
66024 Gh0.95

- 22.35
20,52 18.31
38.34 57.10
2,34%,25 2,256.99

March 31, 2019
{INR In MiHlion)

March 31, 2018
{INR In Mlllion}

0.65 0.40
321.83 315.68
316.08

322.48




Rohtak-Panipat Tollway Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year endet! March 31, 2013

26 other Expenses

Rent {refer note 31 and 34§

Rates and taxes

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

rrofessional fees

Communicatlon Expense

Travelting and conveyana

Cashy Collection charjes

Alditers' remuneration (Refar nole below;
Miscellanizous expenses

Payment Lo Atditors:

Statutory audit fees
Certification Fres
Glhers

March 31, 2019
(IR In Miltion)

March 31, 2018
{INR [ Million)

1.24 114
1,74 -

- 14.97

7.38 7.03

11.36 8.79

0.53 0.31

.26 0.42

0.98 1.42

0.49 0.63

5.50 077

Total 29.57 15,12
Marchal, 2010 March-31, 2018
{IN i Milkion) {INR tn Mllion)

0.38 0,48

0.11 0.09

- 0.06

Total " DA% 0,63

..... =
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Rehtak-Panipat Tollway Private Limined
Notes o financiad stateaents fos the year edded Margh 31, 2019

27 incnmn X
The majar toimponent of Income tax pxpenses for the year endeid March 31, 2019 ane March 31, 2016 afé as inder:
al Profit and loss secilon KMarch 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018
{ii in mMiillon] (NN In Milfion)
Ciirent tax ' - -
Dt eed tax -
Tolal ' .

0} Recanciliadinn of fax expense and the accounting praflt muftiplied by donsestic tax rto:

T"Meatch 31, 2018 March 11, 2018
{INR 1 Millian) {150 In pil3ons)
Accoutiting profit before 1ax {1,860.71) 11,048,30)
Staldory Incoms tax pate 26.00% 3uUik
Expectad Income tax xpenses |963.79) {147,532}
Tax effect of adjustivients 1o reconclin expected Income fa mapenses Lo aporied InEpmi $ax wpinsny,
Vo fosses nof recognised due 10 absence of probalite critainly of reversal {refer nate belaw) 176,09 LLYA]
Taimpact due chinge in lax rale {292.30) -
At sfinctive income ks rate of NI {Macch 31, 2019; Nil) = B
B} Dederrod tox . (LN In tillin]
. Golaoce sheat Statement of Prolit and Loss
Partitudars
___Marety 31, 2019 Mirch 31, 2018 March 31, 2019 Mareh A1, roan
Irnpart of falt valtation of invesinrent . {1250} {060} 0.5
gract of ol vaheation of deduslive cotiiract . 12.4%) (a2.41) [10.4%)
Espanlityre allowable over the perlod 1,600, 76 2,201,839 G013 320,10
Cxpendilure wlioveable an payinent basis {2,050, 1) [2,7231.238) [672.81) {377.65)
Unusef Insses aveflable lor olfssiting against fatura tavable Hicome 240446 2,378,063 175.83] {902
elarved tax exponsaf(Intamn) {111.56} {455.50}

Deferrad tax mapinse/fincoing] recognlsed in sinfement of prafit & loss

{rafer doto hejow) - Z
Hed defesred tax pssets/|liabilisfesj 1,954,941 1,043.18

et deforrad tax assets/{ilabiiities) recogalsed in Balanee shant frefer noto

lrelow}

Nolos

b Asamatter of prlence, the company has secapnised doferred ax assets oh dedaclible toniporary differences and carry forward ol gnnsad tax Jusses in the boaks 16
Uhe extent of dedecead Lax lability bulsave, ds # & not profable that fusuce Larable profll wiif ha avsilalic apaingl whith those terpunary difforences, fosses and 4g5
rredit aainst wilsich defleered ta assots can he atiliredd, Accortiingly, (MR E,954,84 nilisn {31 March 2038: 184320 million) s aot recopnisad as deferred tax assets
in Ihe huoks as at reparting date. o

-y
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Roliak-Banipat Taltway Private Lnlted
Notes ja fmancial Statempnts for the year ended Margh 31, 2039

Yarning per share (EPSk
Thie llinwing sellecis the nconie and aquity shace data psed in the hasic and dided E09 compuialions:

'March 31,2009 March 31, 2018
HNER Dy Mitlion} (INR In Miliian)
Net {£oss] altributable 1o enuity shareholiers: {1.860.71) {4,408,30)
Hupher of cipslly shares it the gadl of the year 21,8645 L4645
Veighied sverage riimber of equity shares {pe basic and dliited £0% 21 H0,445 X, Bt 40%
Matpinal value of aguity shares i0 10
Hasic and dgilured {Inss) par shiee {851.02) {662.40)

Employee brneAts gisclosire:

Defingd contributian plans:

The lullawing wiuaunt fucageiseit as expensaos In stotoment o profit anc Toss o accowal of provideny b imd ather funds, There are no other abligations
athestha the contsilution payabie to Lha respactive authorities,

march 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

(INR in Million) {INR Ia Milllon}
Contsthiition o provident fund 1.32 136
Canyrtbution 1o 5 .60 0.38
Cantgibution (o benevelent fund 0.03 i3
Totat . 1895 L7

Belined besiefit plaas - Gratutéy beneflt plan: .

i Company has a Grawdty beoefit plan, Cuery pploban who bas tomplesed tiva yaais or more of service gots & gty on the Lermination of lis
ernployenent wl 15 days satary {las) draw satary] for ench coapletéd yeur of sevuice. The scheme & unhunided. The presenl value of obfigation in respect of
gratuity is dojesmineed Daged on aciuanal valuation wsiag the Meojesd Linlt Credil Meifind ax prezcrilied by the Indlan Acconndlsag Stantsrd - 189, Gratisity Das
bean tecagnized in the linancial statement as per the dejalls given Licfow:

Maacly 31, 2019 Masch 33, 2018
[INR in Mislion) {INA 15 Miltion)
Deftnad hinefit abligations as 2t beginning of ik year < A 0,40 0,60
Cast_charged (n statement of profit and loss
Carrnnt servive sl 0.1 0.30
Interest enst 0.06 .04
Sub-tetat includod i slaterment of profit and foss - B 0.47 040
Remeasirement 2ains/llosses) i ailicr comprebensive ngonie .
Acluanlad loss/{giin) due to change o financial assumptions 0.02 {h.od)
Acluarlal loss/{pain] doe to oxpesience {0,303} [:04[)7[
Sub-totat included in other comprehenstve income - C {0.28} {0.10
Dedineit henclit obligations os ot end of the year (A+D-C) 1.40 0.90
Non-cusrent 162 .00
Cuirrent - 048 -

the pringigal assumptions vsad b determining abiave defined benelit obligations for the Company's pgans are shawa below;

March 31, 20114 Narch 31, 2018
Ulscaunt sale 1.35% 1.A5%
Salary Grovwith Rate F.00% .01,

Wilhdrpwsl rate

elartality rat

155 at yoliger
agns reductng 1o
3% at alder ages

Indian Assured

Lives Moriality

15% at younper apges
reduting W 3% al
olile) dges

Indian Agstred Lives
Maorlality (2006-08)

{#006-08)
Aqantitallve senaitiviy analysis for sipificant assempijon ds as shaven belows
Particulars i
Sensitivicy level March 3_1,.‘2‘029 Mareti 31, 201!}
{INR 10 Millinn) {INR Iy Million)
Ciséount fivle 0.50% Increase .03} (0,02}
0.50% dutrogse o.0% 801
Safary Guowthi Bate Q.50% Ingreasne .05 0040
. 0.501% decrénsn 10.03) {042)
Wilh‘:!|uw.';!’;'.l:t%::_(w 10% Increase {0.00) {0,010}
10% decraasn G402 o2




Rohitak-Panipet Tolhyay Private Uinitad
Notes 1o Financtal Stalewients Jox the year ended March 31, 2019

c

30

Maturity Profite of the deffodd Lenalit olilgation
Al at Marcli 31, 2019

INR in lidlion %
HI0 0.0/ 5.89%
2l 008 7.59%
2022 ' 0.0 8.80%
073 0.1 9.855%
1024 0.6 1,615
2025 - 2049 ) 054 R2.27%

As al Mareh 34, 20ig

INR in Million %
2011 0.00 0.30%
P12l 0,07 T
2021 004 Anr
2022 0,09 10.11%
20023 0,13 14.36%

24 - 2 ' 0.53 SH.63%%

tHhe sverngs dusalion af the duflipgd henefit plan elipgation at the and of (e ond of the separling perind s 16,59 yiars (March 31, 2018: 17.42 years),

Other eivployed benefit;
Safarles, Wagus and Donus inciade IR 0.54 milfian (31 March, 2018 40 0.58 millfon} toviartls provisian made as per actial Busks In respect of accomlated
leave aocashmeni/éompensated absenées,

Disclosure relatid to Perdodical major malptenance provisions:
Provision Ior major risintenance in respoct of foll raads malntained Ly the Company wader service congession airarigements and classilied us ntangible
W5501ls reprasems centractoal obiigabions 10 vestare s infrastucture lacility to a specliiod fevel of seavicealility tn respect of such asset. Esthnate of the
provisian & measured wying 2 nimber of factors, stich as costaciaal raquirements, road usage, rxperl epltians snd expuecled price levels, bocadse actual
cash flows can dilfer from estirmales due o chanpas in laws, regulations, pubic expectatins, peices and sonditions, and can take place My years in lutero,
te cariying amounts of provision i reviewed at rogular intarvals and ndjusted to trke accannt of such changes, Below is the movament in nrovision for the
yoir

March 31, 2019
{INR I Millioir)
R bl Tl i kool S

Carrying amount as at April 1, 2018 ) 712.02
Adii: Provision made duting the Year 168,70
Add: inurease durbsy the prar by the Siscousiod smount doe o passage ol tig . 95.17
Careying nmourit os al Marels 31, 2049 . LYLN:
Cxpectad fime of outfow In 2019-2020 1o 2{324.

,.mf"'.::':t“’“x,“_‘ 24




Robtak-fanlpal Toilway Private Liniteed

Notes to Financial Statements for 1ha yoar eorleit Marel 31, 2012
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Related! pary disclasures

Realed party dischasures a8 ruruires undey e nginn Arcounting Standard -

Hutig of related parties s nature ofrelationship:
Related pasties where control nxists:

Daseription of refrtionshis

Uinmate Halding Crmpany

Hotding Comparny

Teapsactions with related parties dueing the Year:

Sliert tinm harrowinps received

alffL

Interest on short feetn horrowings

At

Opneatinas aid imaintonaince spavices availog
SHA

Real expenses

BEL

Cnastureling pupenses [includiog Intevest}
SEL

Batances aulstanding |

Oler vrjully {parpetusl debts
Sl

Shart ey horrowings outstanding (including interest poyable)

SRl

Payable tnwards uiitty shifting

SHL

Payable towards EPC cast, oparation & maiptensnce
L

Reiit and reimbursenmenl of expenses

SEL

fayahle townals €PC contractor clatni tacluding ioterest payalie)

SEL

Terms and congitions of Lhe balance putstanding:

24 pi YRele bt Parly Disclogises™ dre given below:

Mame of the refatad paity
Saiflshav Engineenog |mited {SE1)
Saclishav Inkrasiraclire Frojirl Lud (31PL}

March 31, 20458
{IHA In Million)

March 31, 2010
[INR Iy Millon)

91430

240,48
37.99

1.05

41562

154,092

LI

[ Ftd

507.50)

Wiarch 33, 20118
{INR I Milltan}

March 31, 2118
J[IND I Mitlian)

2,309.06

182831

1,56

75,51

2,09

588.01

2,209.00
169734
156
0.2
112

GR2.2N

1. Fhe fransacfions whh related pacies sre mate oo fervs eqpivalent 1o those that prevail in sro's leagth fransactinns, Cuistanding balanees a1 the year-end
areunstalred ang inderest Ireée xeepts shart tare boan and settiement occurs in cash as par ibg tarms of he spreement.
1. Shat U 1éem ans in iNR laken fom 1T related paty cardes Intecest rale 131.75% (March 31, 2018 £ 11.15% ).

3. The Connpany has net proided any canymizment Lo the refaled party as at March 31, 2019 {Marchi 31, 2018; IR'NI) ).

Contingent liakilities and conumitmenis:

Clalns apainst the Company ol ackoowledged as dehls

{ncome Lax®

March 34, 2019
(iR 1 Million)

“March 31, 2018

{INR Is Million)

13.73%

IR E]

* Toward Income tax dimnangt drom puthorities for Incame earaegt duiing project impementation pérad for £Y 201215, s respect of sald mnler, e
Campany has prefecred appeal with Tabunal. The mattar Is peading with istbungl as at reporting date,

Pigvident Fiend Hauitily

Thete are numierous interpretativie ssues sofaling (o 1he Seprense Count {SC) fudgment on PE dated 281h Februsty, 2013, As a makter of cautton, (he Growp
has decided 16 assess the impacl on a prospective basis from she date of e SC ardes. The tnpact on account af Yhis s not melerial. The Group will updaze its
provision, an reepiViag hirther cfarity e the subject,

Segment Reporting

The sperating segment of the company bs identlivd to be “BOT®, as Wie Chisi Operating Dacision Maker (CODM) foviews bushitess perlormance al an overn'
cumpany leval a5 one sepment and hanee, does ot havee aoy addhional disclosures to be mace ursien Ind AS 108 Operatiog Segasents. Funilier, thee Conipany
alsy primaslly pperates dnder oise geagraphicat sagrient pamely sndia. There e ng single cusloniers which contribute mose than 10% of the total revenie of
iho conipany.

Opzrating Lease:

The company has luben office spate an operating lepses on shiort Lerm basis Le. within ¥ yoear. There are no sils-teases and the [zases i cancafable al any
polni of timi by cither padties, There are no restdctions inipased undér the fease siracpements. Thers i neither any coilingent rent nor asy escalation
chigsein the inase agreoments, Ouring thyear, tha company has Incurred INR .06 million [Mareh 31, 20182 1R L0 aslion).
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38 Revenue from contratt with customers
35.1 Disapgregated revanue Infarmation
Sei pui beluw s the disaggregation af e Company's revemie fom contracts wilh cusiommerss:

Type of service rendarad

Tolt operation service

fonsiruction seovica

Tatal revenge froa contoacks widl cus{omors

Place of service miderer
india
Tatal revenue from contracls with customers

Titning of revenne recomition
Services tranilerred ever lime

folal revanue from contrazts with sustonters

35

P

Contract balanees

Coneagy asseis frehes node 11)
Contracl lisbiltivs {refer note 19}

" March 31, 2019

Morch 31, 2046

{INT s Miliion}) [INR 51 Mittian)

106530 1,310,508

o 8.1L 522,25
1,073,103 LB3LR3

1,073.41 1.832.83

- 1,073.41 113283

) 1,073.41 1,632.43
1,073.4) 1,832,83

March 31, 200
(NIt Mbtios)

Masch 31,2018
{INR i Million)

9,36

L%

ER N
.51

Contract assens are secogoised fas rovente earned lrom the cansteuction seaviees senresed s Concsissioner (WHA} undér cancession agreement, Hpn
cenngdetion of wark, the coitiract 95sets are plassified as 1rade receiveble. fncrzase tn acconnl of additional wark sherdng the Yoo,

Caniratt liabHities of INR 0.56 1niilion entatad {6 advanras recoived toward conslruction services during thee year deensi cancassinnes {HHAL) under concession
agreament. Fudher condrach Babdlities of INR 0.5 mililan inclides amount reseived towasd monlbly passes issiied (o fustomis. Hecrease an accaust of

recorgised reventie during the yeai.

set oul hizlow is the amount of revenuse récogalsed teora;
Arnots inchoded in contract Balilitles at the baginsing of the year

35,

.

Performance ohligation
formition shout the campany’s perfpoance vbligalions ave susmarised below

Toll opeiatlon servicos

Marcl 31, 2019 March 31, 2010
{INF 1 Milillon) (iR In Miflion)
0.5t n.4h

The pedormancs nbligative Js sitisfied aver time g5 each 108 road-tser stmulianeously receives and tonsumes the heneflis provided by e Company. Given
the short thate peviad oyerwhicl the company provides toagd ogrerating servichs to each tead user (Lo, ihe duration of the time i) 1akes the rom) user 10 Lravel

the fungth of the wl raad}, thd Contpany facognisas (ol revenie whin i coliacls the toils,

Constractian services

the perlarmanca sbllgation 1 satishied aver Wine a5 the assels s under contéaf of concessloner {Natiannl Highway Authariiy of Indind wnd Chey simultanenusly

receives and consiamas the briglits providod by e Lompany. The Company recelved progressive payment loward provision of constractisn services,

Hier Lransaction piee alfocated fo tha remaining purformancd obiligatinns {uinsatisfind oe partially unsetisticd) os 2t 1% Mared are, ns loliows:

Within ona year

334 Rernncilintion of the amaunt al ravene recorded in (he statemeat of profit & fass i not required as there are an affustinent to thie contédct e,

Marchi 38, 2019
{1t T Milllon}

March 31, 2018
{INIL 13 bltltond

B.i1
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36 Disslosure of Financlal instrpments by categbry

» {INR 1 Miltion}
Marels 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Note na. YIPE  FYTOCH  Amortized cost  FYTPL WTOO  Amoriized rost

Financial aseet

Investment in muliad fund B - - 31.96 -
Cash and cash eguivale g - - 10.62 - - 1,34
Oty Fipancial assets . ) in : R 95D.34 137.23 - 98Z.4b6
Total financial Assels - - 400,96 169,19 506,80
Finanelal #abilities

Non eqrs o horrowings 14 - 8,906.55 - - 9,719.67
{naig repavable on demaml ] - - HIRE.7? - - 1,372.62
Tratle payablos 7 . 14.77 - - 32,1%
Finapcis Mabilitles 15 - - 11,340.03. . - iN,216.03
Total fihancial Habilities . . 22,627.06 - - 21,390.51

37 Fab vafue disclosures for Nnpncial assets and Imencial liabilitles

set ottt below Is a comparisan, by class, of the carrylng amoinls aod fait vaiie of the Company's Tinancial instrivurats, othat than Hiose with canying amounis that are
reasunable approximations of fairvaloes:
{tN It Mlion]

harch 31, 2019 Mareh 3£, 2018
Particuiar Carrying Fair value carrylog Fair vakue
amount ) amount

Financial Asse)s

inwastnrenl Inpuldad fusd - - AL96 Tl

{reciwntives siot desipnaten os hedpes - - 137.23% 137.23
Tt Pinaneial Assars - . 162,19 160,19
cinanctal liabilities ) i )

Biher Haascial liabilitiey - premium obiipation £,819.51 7,348.00 &, 765,05 £,%49.55
Todal Financial Ligblities ’ - §,819,51 1,349,00 6,705.05 4,919,55
Notes;

4. The cacrying smountof financial assets and financha lahifies measured at amuortised cost I the financial sialements are a reasondbie approximation of ticie fair

vilie since the Coingany does nal anliciate that the casryiog amounts would be sigailicasty differant lroas ihe vatues 1hat would evensually e receivnd or sitled,

b The carrytog value of Company's inlerest-heariog bojrowings are seasonalie agproximations of [y valiss as the borrowing carry {loating Intesest rate,

t. [ha fair value of ihe financial assets and Fabliltes is included ot the amount st which She insliunient cosid e exchangodd i a citreant transaction hetween willing
parties, ovher tharn in 3 forced ar lgoidation sule. The folimving methods and assipiions were used (0 estimale the faic vilies:

The Company had eolered into dervative linanciat instiiments with Banik. Interest fate swaps, option contracl wers valued using valuation fechniques, which
eaploys the pse of market ohsarvable Inpits, The mast fcequoently applied valualion iechniques inciudes forward pricing and swap mndols, using prosent value
calculalips. Thie modes Iscorparala various Inposs inchded corancy spot rale, Bsh e intorest e of respective culrency, eurrency volatiliy and hiileresl rali tirves,
THie darivitive Instsuoienl fle valio veas arrived using mirk-to-markat valuatlon as at March 11, 2018 Thin deal has bean closed as ot Marcli 31, 2019,

- The fatr value of freanvmn Obligation is calculted by discounting future eash fowss vsing mies as poe BB iank rate + 2%,

38 Falr value hicrarchy
The foifowing (plife provides the fair value maasurement. hiprarchy of the Comipany's assers and tabifites
Cuanthtative.disclosures fal valve iseasuazment hicsicehy for financlal nasels s at March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018
{INTUiG Milon)
Fair valisn measurament using )

Nate significant bhservable inputs (Level 2)
Na, Mireh 31, 31019 March 31, 2018
fsgets srpasurad at falr valie :
Fair vislue theough profil & foss
tpvestment in Molval fund 8 3195
Derivatives nol designated as hedges ] 137.23
Liahifitles aisasared at fair vatue
Assetls for whlch falr values ore disclpsed
Other Financiat Liabifities - fremium Obiigiton 0 1,34%.00 6,94%,55
- N . g_.\..‘l
b ] {
o |
- i
* +
5 \\l\émmwan <
W &%
NN
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39 Finangtalinstumends sk management abjectives and polisies

la

Fhe Company's princiimi financial fiabitities comprise borrawings snd trade B atber payabiles. The main purpese of Uinse financial Babifities is to
findrice the Company's opertions. The Company’s icipal financisi assels Inghida (nvastmens, {oana, uthir fivanclal sssets and pash aod bank
Latonce Mal derive divectly [rom its operations,

The Company's activities expase It ta market sisk, credi st and liquidity fsk. The celipiahy's focis is (v foresee the wigredictabiiity of finingial
mirrkats sl seak to miniive petenifal miverse eflacts o s ivancis) pitimance.

e Aoard of Directers has overall rexpensiility far ihe establistisent aad oversighl of the Cotmpahy's dsk matagement Famework, figh
smanagerarnt systemns aoe wviewed pododicaity to reflect changes s marke! conelitions and 1he Compary's activilins. The Ooand ol Dircins oversee
cimplianes vilh Ui Company's rlsk manageiment pltcies and rotedives, and reviews the dsk msnagement framaworie,

Markel risk

tlarket risk s the risk that the Takr vatue of fulure cash flows of o Bnancial islrofent will ffuctuate Lecause of changes e mankel peices, Markel risk
comyirbes three types of risk: iterist rate 15k, curoney risk and other price sk, Finantiad Instrorsinls affected by wnmim misk Include Liorrowings,
Invesunents, sehir reécoebables, uade anid olber payablos,

Within the various nictiotiilngles lo analyse and manage risk, Conipany hat impletanted & sysiam based on “epnsitivity anakjsia” oh symmetric besis,
Ihis tool enaliles the visk mansgers to tantify e tish position of the entitias, Senslivily aoalysis provides an approximate quantificition of the
expustra i the event that ceriain spocified paminaters were 1o be met voder 3 spezailic sel al assumptions. Tha risk estinstes provided lere asspos
- @ prarafled shifl o) 25-basts polnts of the intarest rate yvield curvas i alf curanéles,

-0 simultaneous, pivaliel foreign eschange rates shift o which the INR appreciates / depreciates agahist att coreneins hy 24

Ther polentizl econanic bapact, e 16 those assunystions, i based on the occudenca of adverse / fnvarse nwrket conditlons and reffecis estimaiey
changas tesaliing fram tlie sensitivity analysis. Actual results thal a6 included in L Statement of prafit & loss may differ swterially frain these
estimates due la adtisal developroents B He globat fneacdsl markets.

The analysns exclude Lhe impact of movomenls in markel varialiles o (he tatiyiog vatues of geatully and provisions,

Tha Aolowing assumption las been inmdn b calculiating the seositvity analyses;

- The sensiikvity of the relevant siatenient of proflt or loss item i the effect of the assumed thanges in pespectiva market dsks, This g based op the
Tinanilat pssirs auid Bnanclat iabibties betd as at Marehi 31, 2019 ammd Mareh 31, 318,

internst rate risk .
Ielusrisd il s8k bs the visk that faic valee o foline cash (iaws of a financial Instrumentwili luctuate because nf changes in markar infeeast 1ates,

Thet nterest disk arises Jo the Cotmnpany niaialy frons lorg term biorrowings with variabl rates. Fhe Campany manages its Wierest rate risk by having a
fioaling ntesost cale loans anel horrawings. The Company mcasures dbsk through sensitvily analysis,

The bank finances pre 4t varlebie mate, wiich fvthe inherant hshess risk.

Inkerest rate senshivity
Tha following table demonsisitoes the sensiivity to n reasanalily possibie changs i Interest rales on thal poction of loans dml harrowings alfected.
With all sther vatiahles held constint, thn Company’s profil before 1oy s aifecied through tie Inpaet e Tlogling rate Bnerowings, s fallows;

Effect onlnss before fax.

Mireh 31, 2019 March 31, 2050

{IHN In Mo} [INR tn Miltinn)
Incraase i 25 hasis phipt 123,31} ' (25.01]
Beoizase Tn 2% hasti point 23.31 25.01

Thar effect of threrest sate thanges on fulers cash fows s excluded fram His analysis,

Fotefgi Cusirency Risk
Forelga currency sisk is 1he sk that te G value or futur cash Bnws of an exposure will Hectuate becanse of changas i loreln wechange rislas. The
Company transacis business in focal zuresricy and in Tarelgn caereacy, privarly in USD, The Conpany had forelgn turiendy foans and way, therefore,
exposed wifereipn exchange risk. The Crapany miy use {nzelgn exchanpe epiloes 10wards hetging disk resubinig trons changes and flugliations §is
loreign curreaty exchange rale, Thise toreigs xchapgd comracts, carrled @1 fir wilue, may have varying matorites vaiyipg depsading vpor the
primacy host comtract requironents and sk managemenl sirtegy of the Lompany.

The Chinpisty managas s foteign foreiey tlsk by bedgiog sepropriate percentage nf its foreign furmeney expnsure, as appreves by Deacd sis per
estabilshed risk managenseot polley. Hetadls of the hedge & unhedped position of the Company gleeh in Note no. 40,

.,

oot
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Fretelpn clirrency sensitivity

As per the Comipany's palicy, eachange role tiferencus of fong-ierm indeign curcenty lsins which aee related Ao arguisilion of depreciobie Bsed assels
$que been added 1o or daducted from Uw cast of the assots and deprecisted over the balance fife of the assets, Actordingly, the change o LIS rate
wieas el impacind directly o0 Ioss befare Tax anid pro-lax ety for the vesr ending Maech 31, 2718 ani accardingly sensitivity anplysis af change in-
LS e has nol been preseatid, Foreign airraney o was igfingiced duciig the yoar.

by Credit sk

Cyestlin fis s Uhe risk that 2 counterpasly will ol mact ils chligations undes i Tnpechal Instrument or cuslomer conteact, leating o 4 financial loss. The
Couipany ¢ nol edposed Lo credit sk (rom 0 operating Activilns 25 the company 15 collesting il in cash and doks nol have owdianding any
recoivabils, Hawever, fhe Donipiny is expasedd 1o credit risk refated Lo linancing activides, including wemporaty Indestment in mutuat fund and olher

fiinancin) fnstrusiinls,

Fipniciat instrumenis and tomporary kivastment in mutuad fund

Ceetit sk fram balences with banks and financial instutions is managed by (he Camypany’s linance departement in accordance with the Compiny's
palicy. investinents ol surplus funds are mide only In accardance with company palicy. The Coapany montlans the ratings, credit spreads and
tinonclal sirength nf fis counterpanties, fagsed on is on-going assessment of coumeeparty ask, the Campaay adfusts Hs expesirg to varionus
counterparifes. The Campany's maxsimun expasure 1 credil sk lor the companzats of the Batance sheel 93 of tarch 31, 2019 i 1NK 10,62 miflian
and Marcl 21, 2048 ts Y 45,40 ildan. -

{¢} Liquidily slsie
Vigguiddity risk &5 e risk that the Company may netv be able (o meel 155 presenl and [uture gast and rolfaterat ebiigations without {ncuing
upsceeplable Insses, (he Company's objective it to, atall Limes maintain eplivim Jevels of Niquldily to meel its cash and eollareral retpirements, T
Company closely monitors its liquidity posidad and deploys sssh managomert syslam, [ maintajns adegiate sources of finanedng ticiuding deht atan
antimieil cost,

The campatiy maasures bk by lorecasting cash lows,

Ehi Compagy's appraach Lo managkog lyuidity 1s 10 ensure; a3 far 35 possible, tal JEwill always have sulliceat Rquidity to.meor its labiitios when dug
williout Inegribeg unacckplable lasses or riskiig damage lo the Company’s reputation. The Company ensures that it has seificiant fund o meat
expectid operatinnal expenses, servicing of nancist obligations,

The table hetow summadses the motuciy prafile o the Composy’s finipchl dnbilities based oo conlrped

{ sindiseounted pininents;
{iNR 1y million)

Particuiars Tatat Amuount Qu Demanit tipth 1 year 1-2 years 2 - % yeais > 5 yearg
As a3l March 31, 2010
Man current borrowings if 9,323.08 - 38132 43877 2937.41 556558
Cettrent horiawings 2,286.72 2,286.72 - - - -
Trade payables 4497 A 47 - - : -
Othax firaneiasl fhihilivies 1101274 - 1,3157.60 29410 51300 144,26
Total 22,667.31 2. 286,72 178378 73087 3,150,11 14,400.01
As al Moreh 34, 2018
Féob cureent Hoi iowings 1i,004.42 - 25404 EFAEEATH 232465 4,431.44
Corrent borowlogs 1,372,62 137203 . - - -
Trade Payabley 3219 3319 - - -
Cithier Financial Liabiligies 9,993 06 - 1,045.30 147.30 11080 1,5909.66
Tatal 21,400.29 1,372.62 12910 3,4R0.39 3,135.45 12,421.10

# Curreitt malurity of Noo-cuaeat borroedngs 15 kicuded and Unamorised transaction cost peid (o lenders on uplront husis )5 exchided.

A0 Deruative instruments:

Degivative puistanding as at the repaning date

UHR in miilon)

As ot Marchs 31,
2010

Nature of instruniont

As ot March 35,
2030

Swap conlract - interest Swap

Nalional amnunt of USD Mians

Hotional amount af INK Millions -
Qption ceptracts o Buy

Notionat ameunl ol USD Millions

Naotipsalameuat of ENR paillions .

3,64
23687
ALY
320 B4

The Campany had entered into Option conlict over the borgowing tenns Tor hadging (oreign correpcy exchange fisk against external Coramercial
liorrowings. The compdny had also entered intt Swap conteact tn hedge interest rate Audluation aver a hoxswing tems. Dliring the year the conpany

Iy rifinanced Hs forelign oerrendy loanand acoistingly shey ad cloted the abova deslvalive instiionants,

Defivalive fipancial instcumenis such s foreign exchange lrward condracts were dsed for hadpiog porposed and nut as Uading or specilaiive

¢
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4% Copital Managevent

Far the plirpose of the Conpiing's capittal mandgiment, eapital consist of shaie copltal, ather equity In form of subonfinate dolst and alt other resnrves
sliibntably o the eqisity holders of the Compaty. The primary phjective of the Company’s capital tanagement s 1o angtre Ut 3 sainfains an
alficivnt capital sieuituie and deht ROUILY Falio in order (o spport ts husstrnss and nrasiastse sharshoider valne,

Hhe Company manages 1s capfal 56 85 1o saleguadd Hs abllity to continue o5 a Roing tancern and 1o optimise refums to s
sluctuse of the Campaay is besed sn managenient’s judgemant of s strategic and day-to-tay nauds wiih
Investor, creditois aod markst confidente.

hareholders, The capitai
A forus un tolat equity 5o 35 th maloisin

the Comigsiny monitors caphtal using a debt equily satio, which s iotal Dorrowings ditded by tatal ety cxcluding bl

arice nl negativa batance of
retain earning.

The key purformance ratios as at 41 March wre as lalhows

Mitreh 31, 2019 Mareh 31, 2018

{INI i inllon) {HR in million)
Nosi turspat barowings® frafr nate 14 'J,?HZ.BB 5,942,564
Current Birvowiigs {rifer note 15 2,286,712 3,37268
Total {A) 11,560.55 T 11,335.76
tiguily share sipital {roler nole 124 21.86 2186
Other equdly [reler pote 13} {3.681.65) {3,821.22)
Aehd: Defieltin statemwent of profit and loss accoun) {refer nolr 13} B.080.50 6,216,10
Total (D) 2,426.80 2,A26.80
Dbt eouity ratlo {A/D) A7} 1,66

* Non-cuerent horrowings nchides euaene avatucdties of son-curepng herrowings which has lieen o

assified Lntted sthes corrong financial Habifides aod
the effect of ransai ton enst pitkd to feodars ao upirent Gasis.
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Distlosurt pursuant to Appendiv <E toInd A5 115" sarvice Concesglon Arrangoments” ['SCA)

Daseription and epssification of the-drrangemont

Tite Company has eotered into Service Concgsalun Ardpment {'SCA") wilh Hational Highway Auihorly of India (NHAI) dateid Warch 09, 2000 fog the
puizposa af four taning of Rehiok -Fanipat seclian from ¥m 63.20 of MH-10 to Km 83.50 on Mi-1 in the siate of Haryana on Desigs, Quilt, Finance,
Oparate and Transfns {DUFOT) biists. The Concession pariod Is of 25 yenrs inciding construclion peddod of $10 days. The Comparny ohtained completion
cerlificate on GEh January, 2014 frons BHAL

Significant Terms of the arrsagements
Rendsion of Faes:

Feus sial be ravised annually on Aprii 01 subject fo 1he provislons al thi: Nustlunat Riglways Fee {Detecspingiion of Rates and Collectinn} Rules, 2008,
nindifiction of concesslon period:

Tie Concassion prrind shall be moddiad;

I Actuat Average Traffic flls shorl of Targer Traffic Ly more this 2,5%, the cancession perod shail be increased by 4.5% theryol for overy 1% shestiall,
it not moge $haik 20% of ie contession prdad.

¢ Actual Average Traflic exceeds Targal Traffic by more than 2,5%, the concession perad shall fie redgced hy 1.25% sherenl for every 1% inerease, but
noi rare Lhan 1% of e concesslon periad. .

If the avpengis daify tralfic excerds the designed capacity af the project highvay, the conepssion period hatl ba extendérd (nok mose than 5yags) In
such a way so s 1o apable the concessionaire 10 yleld Equily 1R 6l 16% p.o with oa assumption of dabt equity ratio of 7020

H (he additional ellvay has been constnugled, sither the coneassion perlad shall be extendsd o enmpinsation has bean granted.

The concessionaire shall pay Additional Concession fees pf IMTASD.00 Mitlion for each-year of concession pesied ool of the gross revenue of the projec
as share 6 Autharily frons COB, Premivm shail be detarmined by ingreasing thi amount of premiany in the respctive year hy an adifitionat K% as
comparad to preceding yeas,

Authorlty (MHAT) lias graited dofierment of Preasium payabla 1o HHAT a5 per the deferment schetdule tiply yeir 2026-27 and potive preming payabls
pieforo e 0f onk year feam end of cancession prriod

I ease ol material defaulf of hrench of agreament by MHAL which causes suspienston of o reduction by coligction of Fecs, it shall pay 16 the
Concessienairs, the campensalion far consequance of such material default or extenit the concession periad.

I, due 1@ chapge in the aw, company suffers pn intrease in €06t of snduction in nel afer-tax folurn or the pther financial Biriden subject to the limits
specilied in the 5CA, {he SCA shalt he modilied 11 such 2 way thit it iullifies such impact of past inctease, reducticn in sty or ethar Enanza burden.
Howeves U na such maodification is dunn, Conpany may reguice by aatice & the aulhorily to pay an smadnt 1hast wonld plate the company in the same
finaneial posiion hat it wiuld tizve snjoyed, had there been nd speh change in the law, Any dispute in the said proceduze shalt be seitled o
accasdance with the Dispute Resolution Proce dure, Opposita will te the ease, in case of raduttion in cost.

Rights of the Company to use project biglway

Te demand, colleet and apprapriate, Fre from veitclss and Users linbie {or paymeant ¢l Fee lor using the Froject Highwery o any pal thereof and ¢eluse
entry of ary-vehicle if (he Fee due i3 noy pald.

Right of Way, access anil licenee 10 tha Site,

Dhligation of the company

The Concessionatee shall not. asslgn, transfes o sulilet ar ceeate any lan or Fncumbranes on the SCA, of the Concession grantad o on the whole or dny
pard of the Project Highway nor transfer, lease 0f pact passession thevenl, save aod edcepl as expressly permitled by 5CA pr tha Salasitotion
Aitreensent. The project highway means site comprising the exisiing road com prising fram KM 63.30 of HH-10 to #3 8350 of MH-1 and all Project asset,
and its subseruen development and pugment atien in accordance witl the SCA,

The Concessinnaite i under ahligation o carry oud the routine and periadic malnlanance of Prajert Highway as per Seheduie ¥ of the 5CA.

Details of any assets to ba given or 1nken at the end of consession-period

A1 the end of the Coacession pedad the comgany shall delivee the antual or consteuctive possession of Hhe Project Highway, lrer and cleas of all
encumbiancns,

Details of Terination

SrA can e terminoted on account of delaolt of the company ur NHAIL N the crepmstances as spesilied onder article 37 al e SCA,

There bas baen po change in Ythe cancessinn asrangement ditsing the yex.

Aplow 15 details of reverie and toss recopnised 1nthe yisar March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2048 on gxchange of consiruction serviens for Intangible
assaty

Tho Comprny las recogised revense of IR 3,065, 30 million (March 31, 2088: MR LAIDSE ullicn) on operation of 164 road in foem of toll epliectinn
from usess and ronstruclion revence of INR 8.1 milllan (March 31, 2008 B 532,25 nullion) receiverd from HHAT tovaed change in scopi Fhe

Tougany recapnised Joss of H9R 1,861.20 mithon (March X1, 2018; INR 1448.31 milifon} an pdration of toll coad and profil of INR 0.58 million tMarch

J fromy sorstrantion sperations:




Rahtak-Panipat Tallway Private Limited
Nates Lo Financlaf Stalements foy the ynar ended March 31, 2089

43 the company has sccumufated losses of (MR 3.,086.83 mitlion {Marcti 33, 2018: INR 5,226, 18 afilion} as a1 the March 31, 2019, which have
restelled fu erosion of the company's pet worth, although Sadblay Infrastruzinre Profect Linidted, Lhe holding company, Sponsoes of Lhe
Compiny's projecs, has fovested INR 2,20806 mfllins 5 perpelual debl which is part of the Projest Euity Capital as fier terms of ihe Rupee
Facility Aprozmant {tean Agreement). The Company has bean ablo 1o mept 15 obligations i the ordinary eourse nd the husitiass complimontod
Iy the mhunmng financial support eHered Trom Sadblsav Infrastrucire Projec) Limiled {the Hokling Company). The Sponsors viz, Sadbiay
indeastrucizre Pepject Umitad ao Sadlthiy Englneéring Limiled have also antered inly undertaking to support e Campany for cost averran
ant shertlall i eash fow, Furtlie, the Company is af s Very nasceant stage ol its operation and as par its projection submitled 1o fenders, trafflc
rawily, receipt of arbitzatlon award as welt as tepipeat of Joan over gestation period will luen the Canmpany Inta profitable. Fanther, the
company is it the process of fillng claim as per Lerms D concersion agraeniant. Accardingly, these laancial stateniesis have linan propared
assiening Hiat |he Company wilt coatinee as p Aok concern,

1

=

Standars Issued it ol yet effoctive

The standard {ssued, but nol yet effective tp Lo the dale of Bsuance of the Company's finanetal statements s diselssed Lielow, 1he Canpany
Htenrus o sdopk this stagdaid whina it becons eilective,

Ind A5 116, Leasos;

bk AS LG Leases was intHied by MEA on 30 March 26011 and i replaces ind A5 17 Leases, tutluding appendices Uiereto, Ind AS 118 i effocthen
far annval peviods beginning an or after 1 Apell 2018 Il A5 116 sets out the principles {or the recopnitinn, messurEment, presentitions and
thisctusiire of leases and reqguirss tisssns 1o geeount for afl lenses under siigle n-bafance sheet moded similsr to the accounting for finance
l2ases yndles Ind AS 17, The standard inctudes twa racognition oxemptiong for inssees -« feases of low.valun wasely [og, persanial coinpulers)
and shori-lorm leases o, loasas wilk s fease torm of 13 mnths or less). Af the cobuiencaminm dule of a loase, a lessee will regnpnise a
Rbility to ke lease payments {ie, the legse Valsifity) sod an assat représenting the ripht 1o use the undeslying assei during the lease trin
{l.e, the rght-6lyse asset). Lassees will be required to separalely rsenpiise the interost expanie on the lease alility and il degrecintion
eapense on the dghl-oluse asset,

Lessens will be also roguired i remeastre the lease Hability upon the veeurrence of certain evenrts (e, a changs in o Jause termy, a chiabige in
future loase payments resuitiog froni 4 cliange in ans index os rate vsed to tetenmine these paymeils). The lessee will sennsally rocapnise Lhe
amaunt afthe reneasiiremant of the loase fimbility as an adjustaient 10 he vight-ol-uze asset.

The Compony inlends to adapt thess standards fran 1 Aprih, 2019, As the conyrany does not kave any malprial leases, Weralnre the adogstion of
Uhis standard i nof fikely o bave a materiaf impatt in s Financial Slatements.

a5 Previaus yoar figires:
Mrevious vear figeees imue_ been repraupad/rettassilicd whoreyves necestary, 10 {acilitule compirabifity with current yoar's classification,
N5 per our report of evian Halg

Far &. R. Batlibof & Co, LL fnrand on hihalf of the Bosrd of Directars of
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